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Face to Face Business

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the owners and statutory representatives of Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava' a.s

Report from the audit of financial statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová súďava, a.s. ("the
Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as of 31 December 2022, the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash floľs for the year
then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

2. ln our opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial position o"the Company
as of 3'ĺ December 2022 and its financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with lnternational
Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing ("lSAs")). Our responsibility under
those standards is further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financal Statements
section, below. We are independent of the Company in accordancewith the ethical requirements r=levantforthe
audit of financial statements of Act 42312015 on statutory audit and in accordance with the changes and amendment
to and supplement of Act 43112002 on accounting, as amended ("the Act on Statutory Audit"), including the Code
of Ethics for Auditor, and we have fulfilled our other responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for ou. audit opinion.

Statutory Representatives' and those charged with Governance responsibiliý for the Financíal Statements

4. The Statutory Representatives are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the Act on Accounting and for such internal controls as management determines necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether cue to fraud or
error.
ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's abi ity to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and the use of the going concern
basis of accounting: unless management intends to, either, liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's fĺnancial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibiliý for the Audit of the Financial Sŕaŕemenŕs

5. Our responsibility is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a vyhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with lSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis oí the financial statements.

6. As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, desĺgn and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audĺt evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detectirg a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than that for one resulting from error, as fraul may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, and / or the override of internal controls.

. Obtain an understanding of the internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design auJit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an cpinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting principles and policies used, the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and the related disclosures made by management.

This is a translation of the original Slovak Auditor's Report to the accompanying Íinancĺal statements
translated into English language. bakertllly

2
A Bakor Tilly
EUppg Alliancg mombeÍTPA AUDIT, s, r. o

G



Face to Fa@ Business

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to even:s or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention, in our audit report, to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or' if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify ouľ opinion' our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the audit report. Fowever, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves a fair presentation

7. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing oÍ the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on other requirements of Slovak Acts and other legal regulations

Report on information presented in the annual repoft

8. The Statutory Representatives are responsĺble for the information presented in the Company's annual report,
prepared in accordance with the Act on Accounting. Our above presented opinion on the financial statements does
not relate to other information presented in the annual report.

ln connection with the audit of the financial statements it is our responsibiĺity to gain an understanding of the
information presented in the annual report and assess whether such information is materially inconsistent with the
audited financial statements or the knowledge gained during the audit of the financial statements, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

As of the date of this audit report to the financĺal statements the annual report has not been made available to us.

When we obtain annual report, we will assess if the annual report includes information required by the Act on
Accounting. Based on the work performed during the audit of the financial statements we will express an opinion,
on whether:

. The information presented in the annual report for 2022is consistent with the financial statements for that
year,

. The annual report includes information required by the Act on Accounting.

ln addition, we will state, if we have identified significant misstatements in the annual report based on tur knowledge
of and situation ĺn the Company, which we obtained during the audit of the financial statements.

Bratislava, 16. March 2023

r/k
TPA AUDIT s.r.o.
Licence SKAu No. 304

lng. lvan Paule, CA, FCCA
Responsible auditor
Licence SKAu No. 847
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S!ovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a' s.
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022 prepaĺed in accordance with lnternational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(All amounts are in Euros unless sŕaŕed otherwise)

Note
As at 31 December

2022 202í'

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
lntangible assets
Assets representing right oí use
Other investment
Receivables

Current assets
lnventories
Trade and other receivables
Short - term financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Curľent income tax receivable

Total assets

EQUITY

Share Capita! and reserves
Share Capital
Legal reserve fund
Capital fund from shareholdeľ contributions
Other reserves
Revaluation oÍ financial investment
Actuarial gains/loss
Gains or losses from revaluation of derivatives
Revaluation reserve
Retained earnings
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-curľent liabilities
Non-current finance lease liabilities
Non-current portion of grants and other deferred
revenues
Deferred tax liability
Other long - term liabilities
Non-current provisions Íor liabiĺities and charges

cuľrent liabilities
Current bank loans
Current finance lease liabilities
Trade and other payables
Current portion of grants and other deferred revenue
Provisions for current liabilities and charges
Current income tax payable

Total !iabilities
Total equity and liabilities

5
6
8
7
11

16

17

18
14
19

876 726 033
21 743 696

511 374
44 332 117
44 802 898

893 885 693
18 502 530

780 515
44 332 117
40942 128

988 í16'lĺ8 998 44a 983

't0
11

12
12

13
't3

13
13

496 002 353 259 68C.888

't 484118 471 '.t 2s8 125 871

1 469 171
68 6í6 364

255 000 000
160 701 457
10 215 361

'l 63e 693
93 40r 588

0
164 63€ 607

0

235 00C 000
26 93C 570

0
175 408 425

109 020
2 527 465

0
96 382 309

334 328 205
974 5í3 965 870 682 994

't3

235 000 000
28 764 514
58 254 724

196 184 498
1 09 020

2823082
-1 710 138
83 845 735

371 242 530

372 4'.t3

175 755 734

68 370 731
0

3 694 205

624842

171 889 042

70 959 358
6 000

4 523840

15
16
14
't7
19

5 341
't76 414

84 047 630
'177 141 873

40'165
0

248 193 083 248 003 082

5 475461
200 134

80 378 439
38 312620

40 165
15 032976

26'.1 411 423 139 439 795

509 604 506 387 442877
1 4841',t8 471 ',t 258125871

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a. s.
lncome Statement and Statement of Comprehension lncome as at 31 December 2022 prepared in
accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Unicn
(All amounts are in Euros unless sŕaŕed otherwise)

2

Note

Year ended
31 December

2022 2p21

Revenues
Capitalized costs
Consumables and Services
Personnel costs
Depreciation and amortization
Negative revalualion difference
Other operating income
Other operating expense
Operating profit

lnterest income
lnterest expense
Financial investment write-off
other Íinance income/(expense)
Finance cost, net

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Retirement benefit-actuarial gains
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment as
al1 January2021
Gains or losses from revaluation of derivatives
Deferred tax from revaluation of property, plant
and equipment
Total comprehensive income

Profit/ loss attributable lo:
Owners of the parent
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent

Totat comprehensive income for the period

20

21
22
5,6
5

24
23

25
25
7

25

408 216 313
1 004 165

-253 567 731
-31 605 964
-66 326 892

0
9590411

-3 289 747

441 208 416
944 889

-199 027 210
-32 309 173
-68 907 645

-5 067 808
7 001 420

-3 188 369
64 020 555 140 654 520

1 439 849
-329 252

0
58 566 078

32 542
-215 339

-90 946 198
-'t09 010

59 676 675 -9í 238 005

'l23 697 230 49 4í6 5't5

26 -18 555 01s -31 077 072

't05 142 21s 't8 339 443

295 617 3 496 357

0
-1 710 138

49 799 593
0

103 277 -10 527 257
103 830 97í 6'l í08 136

105 142 215
,105 142 215

18 339 443
ĺ8 339 443

103 830 971 61 108 136

ĺ03 830 971 6'l 'l08 í36

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenská eleKľizačná prenosová stistava, a. s'
Statement of Changes in Equity as at 3'| December 31 December 2022 pÍepaÍed in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union

amounts are in Euros unless sŕaŕed

3

shaÍo capital
Logal Bsorus

tund

í05 000 000 2í 000 000

í 30 000 000

235 000 0@ 26 930 570

othortunds

í30 000 (}00 176 4E 126

0 176 &6 426

0 '176 /ĺ05 425

Rovaluation ot
linanciel

invostnont

Geins oÍ
lossrs íÍom

Íovaluation ď
deÍiv{ives

Equity in total

72135907 &t6 228 466 838 909 926

2121G1iJ2 33365377 6í í0E í36
0 -29 335 068 -29 335 068

0 0

-5 930 570

capital fund írom
sharoholdor
conhibutions

Congostion
income ftrnd

AcfuaÍial
gains/loss

-968 892

0

2827 168

2527 168

2823 0A2

RoYaluation of
prcpe y, plant and

equipment fund

96 3E2 309

Rotainod
oamings

334 326 206

Bal.nco as at 1. January 2021

Net prcÍit for the year 202'ĺ

Oher comprehensive income

Totál comProhonsivo incomo foÍ tho
yarm21

Dividends paid (Note 13)

Allo tion to capital Fund fÍom
shareholder contÍib ion (Note 13)

Profit appropriation to Legal Fund
(Note 13)

Balanco as at 3'l Docombor 2021

Balanco as at í. January 2022

Net pÍofit for the year 2022

Other comprehensive income

Total comprohonsiv3 incomo ÍoÍ tho
yaar2022.

Dividends paid (Note í3)
lncrease of the Share capital from the
Capital fund from shareholder
contribulion (Note 13)

Allocátion to capital Fund fÍom
shareholder contŕibution (Note 1 3)

Profit apprcpÍiation to Legal Fund
(Note ĺ3)
PÍoÍit appropriation to statutory (Note
13)

Balance as at 3'l Docombsr 2022

130 000 000

5 930 570

0

3 496 357

0

0 ĺ09 020

0

0 0 0 0 0 o o o 0 18339443 18339443
0 0 0 0 0 o 3496357 0 242.É'402 15o25s?ŕ 42768693

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

000

o

o

n0

0

0000
00

235 oOO OOO

1 833 944

235 000 000 28761511

0

295 617

0

-1 7'ĺ0 138

96 382309 33É328206

0 105't422',15

-12536574 1263985í

-12536 671 1í7 782 066

26 930 570

109 020

'to9 020

0

0

0

0

870 682 99/ĺ

870 6E2 994

105'1422'15

-131',t 244

0

0

0

00

0

0

0

0

0

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

o

0

0

0

0

0

U

0

0

295 6í7 -í 7í0 ĺ38

0

-í 7í0 í38 83 8/ĺ5 735

0

371 2125go 97ĺ 5.l3 965

í03 830 97í
0

0

79 033 797

0

-20 779 073

o

-79 033 797

-1 833 944

020 779 073

0 í96 í84 4Í'8 6E 261724 í09 o20

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a. s.
Statement of Cash Flows as at 31 December 2022prepared in accordance with lnternational Financiď
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(All amounts are in Euros unless sŕaŕed otherwise)

Note
Yearended 3í December

2022 2021

4

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
lncome tax paid

lnterest received
Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and
intangible assets
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant, equipment
and intangible assets
Expenditures on acquisition of long - term financial
assets
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds / (repayment) of loans
lnterest paid
Dividends income
Other income from loans
Shorl - term loan gľanted to a subsidiary
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (+) / (decrease) (-) in cash and cash
equivalents

Gash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end ofthe
year

-ĺ4 380 970 207 983 735

29

29

7

3't 331 989
-45 912 692

1 99 733

225248 )89
-17 298 338

33 584

-42887 828

626 132

0

-67 453248

459 748

0
-42261 696 -66 993 500

't3

-5 746 269
-338 465

58 790 250
0
0
0

-24 494 287
-253 551

0
29 250

50 000 000
-29 335 068

52 705 516 'ĺ o53 656

-3 937 í50 136 936 579

12 í64 638 607 27 702 a28

160 701 457 í64 638 30712

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a' s.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 prepared ĺn accordance with
lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(All amounts are in Euros unless sŕaŕed otherwise)

5

í GeneraI lnformation

Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sÚstava, a.s' (''the Company'', ''sEPs') is one of the three joint
stock companies established (pursuant to the Commercial Register) in the Slovak RepuHic on 21
January 2002 (date of establishment: 13 December 2001) from the process of the division of its
predecessor Slovenské elektrárne, a.s.

The principal activities of the Company comprise the transmission of eleďricity in the courtry of the
Slovak Republic through22O kV, 400 kV and, in a small part, through 110 kV lines and electric stations
of the transmission grid, ĺncluding electricity import, export and transit. The company is also
responsible Íor maintaining a balanced electricity grid in the Slovak Republic and balancing the
production and usage of electricity during the time which is performed using the system serúces.

The Bohunice lnternational Decommissioning Support Fund ("BlDSF") was established in relation to
the shutdown of a power plant in Jaslovské Bohunice. The main purpose of this Fund is to finance or
to co-finance the preparation and implementation of selected projects (''authorized projeďs') related
to providing the technical assistance and/or goods, work and Services with respect to supportthe shut-
down of the power plant in Jaslovské Bohunice as a result of a decision oÍ the Slovak Repuclic to do
so. The Fund supports the reconstruction, improvement and modernization of the energy pr:duction,
transmission and distribution sectors and increases their eŕficiency.

The Company's operations are governed by the terms of its licence granted under the Energy Law
(''the Energy Licence") and other relevant legislation. The Regulatory ofÍice of Network lndustries of
the Slovak republic (hereinafter the "URSo'') regulates certain aspects of the Company's relďionships
with its customers, including the pricing of electricity and Services.

By the end of 2010' the Company perÍormed deviation settlement and organized short-term electricity
market. Since 1 January 201'í these activities has been transferred to OKTE' a. s., which has been
created for this purpose in accordance with law and is 100% subsidiary of SEPS.

The structure of the Company's shareholders as at 31 December 2022was as follows:

owneľship
inteľest and

voting rishts %
Absolute amount

in EUR

Slovak Republic represented by Ministry oÍ Finance SR
Total

235 000 000
235 000 000

100%
100%

According to the Decree of Slovak government No. 481 dated 19 September 2012, The National
Property Fund of the Slovak Republic, transferred the shares of the Company without compensation
to the Slovak Republic, on behalf of which acts the Ministry of finance of the Slovak Republic. As a
result of this, effective 2 october 2012, the Slovak Repub|ic, on behalf of which aďs the Mnistry of
finance of the Slovak Republic, became the sole shareholder, who owns 100% oÍ shares of the
Company as well as 100% of voting rights.

The Company is not a shareholder with an unlimited liability in other entities.

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Stovenská eIektrizačná prenosová sústava, a. s.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3'l December 2022 prepared in accordance with
lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(All amounts are in Euros unless sŕaŕed otherwise)

The members of the Company's statutory bodies during the year ended 31 December 2022 were as
follows:

o

Body

Board of
Directors

Supervisory
Board

Executive
management

Function
Chairman

Vice Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Chairman

Vice-Chairman

Vice-Chairman

Vice-Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Name
lng. Peter Dovhun

Širanec Marián, MBA
Mgr. Martin Riegel

lng. Jaroslav Vach, MBA

lng. Miroslav Janega

lng. Peter Habšuda

lng. Marcel Klimek

Michal Sokoli till 20 August 2022

lng' Marek Šimlastĺx from 8 September 2o22

lng. RÓbert Király

ĺng. Milan Jarás' PhD.

lng. VladimÍr Beňo

JUDr. Eva Murĺnová

lng. Marek Šimlaštĺk till 7 September 2022

Juraj Mach, MSc.

lng. Peter Dragúň

PhDr. lvan Pešout' PhD'

lng. Michal Janĺček

Ľuboš obŽut Írom21 August2022

lng. Peter Dovhun

lng. Miroslav Janega

lng. Silvia Čuntalová

lng. Jaroslav Vach, MBA

Mgr. Martin Riegel

General Director

Managing Director of
Operating
Managing Director of
SED and Commerce

Managing Director of
Economics
Managing Director of
Development Capital
lnvestment and
Procurement
Managing Director of
lnformation and
Communication
Technologies

Juraj Saktor

The Company employed 558 personnel on average during 2022 (2021', 546), 6 of whi;h were
management (2021:6\.

Registered address and ldentification number

Mlynské nivy 59/A
824 84 Bratislava
Slovak Republic

ldentiÍication number (lČo) of the Company is: 358 291 41
Tax ldentification number (lČ DPH) of the Company is: SK 2020261342

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenská eIektrizačná prenosová sústava, a. s.
Notes to the Fĺnancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 prepared in accordance with
lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(All amounts are in Euros unless sŕaŕed otherwise)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policy

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Financial Statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise
stated.

2.1. Basis for preparation

Legal reasons for preparing the Financial Statements:
The Company's Financial Statements at 3'1 December 2022 have been prepared as ordinary =inancial
Statements under $ 17 (6) of Slovak Act No 43112002 Coll. ("Accounting Act") for the accounting period
from 1 January 2022 to 3í DecembeÍ 2022.

The Accounting Act requires the Company to prepare Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards ("lFRS') as adopted
by the European Union ť'EU').

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European
Union. The Company applies all IFRS and interpretations issued by lnternational Accounting
Standards Board (hereinafter "|ASB"), as amended by the European Union, which were effective as
of 3'ĺ December 2022.

These financial statements have been prepared in under the historical cost convention, except Íor the
valuation of property, plant, equipment, and derivate financial instruments, which are valued at fair
value as at the reporting date.

The Íinancial statements Were prepared on accrual basis and under the going concern princicle.

ln connection with the war conflic{ in Ukraine, the Company's management has analysed the possible
effeďs and consequences on the Company and concluded that currently they do not have s gniÍicant
adverse impact on the Company (apart from rising input prices, especially fuels, energy, materials,
goods and services). The Company's management does not anticipate a significant threat to il,te going
concern assumption in the near future (during the next 12 months from the date of preparati:n of the
financial statements).

The Board of Directors may propose to the Company's shareholders to amend the Financial
Statements after their approval by the General Shareholders Meeting. According to $ 16 (9 to 11) of
the Accounting Act the reopening the entity's accounting records after the Financial Statenents are
prepared and approved is prohibited; if after the Financial Statements are approved, management
identifies that comparative information would not be consistent with the current period lnformation, the
Accounting Act allows entitles to restate comparative information in the accounting period in which
relevant facts are identiÍied.

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certa n critical
accounting estimates. lt also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Financial Statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

The Financial Statements of the Company for the previous period were approved by the ordinary
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 22 June 2022.

These Financial Statements are prepared in Euros ("EUR').

The Company issues Consolidated financial statements in accordance with Article 22 of Slovak Act
No.43112002 Coll' on Accounting' as the Company has a subsidiary OKTE, a. s. based in Mlynské
nivy 48, 821 09 Bratislava.

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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2.2. Ghanges in IFRS standards adopted by the company during the accountĺng period

During the year ended 31 December 2022, lhe Company applied the following new and revised IFRS
and IFRIC interpretations:

Amendments to lAS ĺ6 Propefi, Plants and Equipment - Proceeds befoľe lntended tlse
The amendments prohibit deduďing from the cost of an item of property' plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available Íor use, i.e. proceeds while bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary Íor it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Consequently, an entity recognises such sales proceeds and rela:ed costs
in profit or loss. The entiý measures the cost oÍ those items in accordance with lAS 2 lnvenbries.

Amendments must be applied retrospectively, but only to those items of property and plant and
equipment that have been placed in their designated location and are in a condition ensuring the
possibility of operation as intended by management at the beginning of the earliest accounting period
or in a subsequent period in which the Company applies given amendments for the first t me. The
cumulative impact of the first application of these amendments shall be reported as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings (or other items of equity, as the case may be) at the Eeginning
of that earliest period presented (if applicable).

The amendments did not have a signiÍicant impact on the financial statements upon tleir initial
application.

Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Gontingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Onerous
Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
The amendments specify that the cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate cirectly to
the contract. Paragraph 68A clariÍies that costs that relate directly to a contract consist of both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate direďly to fulfilling
contracts.

The company should apply these amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all of its
obligations at the beginning of the accounting period in which it applies the amendments for the first
time (date of first application). The company will not adjust the comparable information. lnstead, as of
the date of first application, it shall report the cumulative impact of the first application oÍ ameldments
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other equity item, as the case may
be.

The amendments did not have a signĺficant impact on the Íinancial statements upon th:ir initial
application.

Annual lmprovements to IFRS Accounting Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments
The improvements clarify that, in assessing whether the exchange of debt instruments between an
existing borrower and a lender is on substantially different terms, the fees to be included alcng with
the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms include only the Íees paid or
received between the borrower and by the Lender, including fees paid or received by eiher the
Borrower or the Lender on behalf of the other parý.

Amendments to IFRS í6 Leases
The amendments remove from lllustrative Example 13 of IFRS 16 Leases the reference to
reimbursement that the lessor will provide to the lessee for the leasehold improvements of the object
of the lease, as well as explanations for the accounting of these reimbursements by the lessee.
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Amendments to IAS 41 Agriculture
The improvements remove the requirement to use pre-tax cash flows when valuing agricultural assets
at fair value. originally, lAs 41 required a company to use pre-tax cash flows in Íair value
measurement, but did not require the use of a pre-tax discount rate to discount those cash fbws.

The amendments did not have a significant impaď on the financial statements upon their initial
application.

2.3. lnvestments

lnvestments are carried at histoľical cost in these Financial Statements. The historical cost :omprise
the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or fair value of the consideration given to acquire the
investment at the time of their acquisition.

2.4. Foreĺgn cuľrency transactions and translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these Financial Statements are presented in Euros, which is the curren:y of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates ("the financial currency"). The Financial
Statements are presented in whole Euros.

(ii) Transactions and batances

Transaďions in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the reference
exchange rates determined and declared by the European Central Bank or National Bank oíSlovakia
as at the date preceding the date of accounting transaction or at any other day if required by special
regulation. At the reporting date, the assets and liabilĺties are translated into the functional currency
using the reference exchange rates determined and declared by the European Central Bank or
National Bank of Slovakia as at the reporting date. The transaction in the foreign currency is
retranslated into the funďional currency using the exchange rate valid at the date of the accounting
transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transaction at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognizes in the lncome Statement.

2.5. Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment is carries at cost less accumulated depreciation out accumulated
impairment losses, with exception to the revaluation model adopted for certain classes of rroperty,
plant and equipment.

(i) Costs

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Borrow ng costs
related to the loans received, which are directly attributable to the acquisition or production of an asset,
are included in the cost of the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic beneÍits associated with the item uill flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the lncome Statemert during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment as the date of establishment of the Company comprise assets Úrat were
acquired as a result of the separation of Slovenské elektrárne, a's., into three legal entities' These
assets were transferred at their original cost with related accumulated depreciation.

o
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The most significant part of property, plant and equipment is represented by the network. The network
mainly includes power lines, pylons and switching stations. Useful life of networks assďs Varies
between 5 and 60 years (2021: between 5 and 60 years).

(ll) Revaluation of assets

Property, plant and equipment - initially, property, plant and equipment are evaluated at acquisition
costs. Acquisĺtion cost includes all costs direďly incurred in putting the respeďive fixed asset to its
intended use.

Subsequently, the land, buildings, halls, lines and structures, machinery and equipment and other
revalued assets reported in the balance sheet at revalued amount, which represents the fair value at
the date of revaluation after deducting any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Other classes of property, plant and equipment are subsequently
evaluated at historical acquisition costs less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.
Revaluation is carried out by an independent expert. Revaluations are performed regularly in sufficient
intervals (at least every five years), so that the carrying amount does not differ materially Írom the
value, which would have been reported as at the balance sheet date using fair values.

Any increase in value on the revaluation of such property, plant and equipment shall be cradited to
other comprehensive income and shall be accumulated in assets in equity revaluation surplrc, takĺng
into account the amount that will possibly cancel the impairment of the same asset item reported
previously in the income statement. ln such a case, the increase in value shall be credited to the
income statement in the amount of the impairment previously reported in the income staterrent. Any
impairment on the revaluation of such properý, plant and equipment shall be debited to the income
statement in the amount that exceeds the balance on the account of the surplus from the revaluation
of assets in relation to the previous revaluation of that asset item. Depreciation of revalued property
items are reported as an expense in the income statement. The revaluation surplus shall be gradually
transferred to retained earnings over the period when the asset is used. ln such a case, the amount
of the transferred surplus equals to the difference between the depreciation calculated 'rom the
revalued carrying amount oÍ the asset and the depreciation calculated from the assets original
acquisition cost. ln the event of a sale or removal of the asset from accounting, the balance of the
related revaluatĺon surplus shall be transferred to retained earnings.

(ll!) Depreciation

The depreciation of buildings, plant and equĺpment is depreciated using the straight-line method,
starting in the month when the property, plant and equipment is available for use, during the estimated
useful lives of non-current assets. The estimated useful lives of buildings, constructions, flant and
equipment and lntangible assets according to individual groups are as follows:

2022 2021
Buildĺngs, halls, networks and constructions
Machines, equipment and vehicles
Other propefi, plant and equipment

10 - 60 years 10 - 60 years

4- 50 years 4 - 50 years

4 years 4 years

Buildings, halls and constructions include mainly switching stations, administrative buildings,
transmission lines, halls, transformers and control rooms, pylons, towers, tanks, commun cations,
elevated power lines.

Machines, equipment and vehicles include mainly hardware machines, tools and equipment, vehicles,
radio relay point and cables.

Gains and losses on disposals land, buildings and equipment are fully recognized in the income
statement.

Land and assets under construction are not depreciated.

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral parl on these Financial Statements.
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The residual value of an asset ĺs the estimated amount that the Company would currently oEtain Írom
disposal of the asset less the estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were already of the age and in
the conditions expected at the end of their useful life. The residual value of an asset is nil or its scrap
value if the Company expects to use the assets until the end of its useful life. The assets residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Expenditures to acquire the property, plant and equipment subsequent to initial recogrition are
recognized as an item of property, plant and equipment only if it is probable that they will enhance the
future economic beneÍits beyond its original peŕormance. All other expenses are recognized as repair
and maintenance costs in the period to which it is incurred.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relatbn to the
total cost of the item is depreciated separately. The Company allocates the amount initially recognizes
in respect of an item of property, plant and equipment proportionally to its significant parts and
depreciates separately each such part.
An asset carrying amount is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

ltems that are retired or othenľise disposed of are eliminated from the Statement of Financial Position,
along with the corresponding accumulated depreciation. Gains and losses on dispceals are
determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognized in operating prefit.

ln accordance with IAS 36, as at the date of preparation of financial statements, an assessment of
impairment indicators is made that would indicate the recoverable amount of property, flant and
equipment would be less than its carrying value. ln case any indicator exists at the balance sh=et date,
the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is estimated which is a higher ď the fair
value less cost to sell and value in use (i.e. the present value of future cash flows). Any im:airment
loss on property, plant and equipment is recognized in the income statements in the period in which
the impairment occurs. The discount rates used in calculating the present value of future cesh flows
comes from the position of the Company as well as from economic environment of the Slovak lepublic
as at the balance sheet date. ln case the Company decides to stop the investment p-oject or
significantly delay its scheduled termination, it considers any reduction of its value and, where
appropriate, record the impairment loss.

2.6. lntangible assets

lntangible assets are initially measured at cost. lntangible assets are recognized if it is probable that
the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company, and the cost
of the asset can be measured reliably. After initial recognition, the intangible assets are measured at
cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Borrowing costs are
capitalized and included in the costs of an asset. The Company does not have intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives. lntangible assets are amortized on the straight-line basis over their useÍul lives'

The amortization of an intangible asset starts in the month when the intangible asset is put in use.
lntangible assets are depreciated in line with the approved depreciation plan using the straight-line
method. Monthly depreciation charge is determined as the difference between acquisition ccsts and
residual value, divided by estimated useful life of the intangible assets.
Residual value of intangible assets is assumed to be zero unless (a) there is a commitment by a third
party to purchase the asset at the end of its useful life' or (b) there is an active market for ťne asset
and residual value can be determined by the reÍerence to that market and it is probable that such a
market will exist at the end of the asset's useful life.

Costs associated with maintaining Computer Software programs are recognized as an expense as
incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing oÍ identiÍiable and
unique Software products controlled by the Company are recognized as intangible assets when the
following criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the Software product so that it will be available Íor u*;
management intends to complete the Software product and use or sell it;

a

a
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. there is an ability to use or sell the SoÍtware product;
o it can be demonstrated how the Software product will generate probable future economic benefits;
. adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell

the SoÍtware product are available; and
o the expenditure attributable to the Software product during its development can be reliably

measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of the Software product include the Software
development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Other development
expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognized as an expense as incurred. Development
costs previously recognized as an expense are not recognized as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer Soítware development costs recognized as assets are amortized over their estimated useful
lives, which does not exceed 4 years. lntangible assets are depreciated over 4 years, easament of
access according to the conditions stated in the Contract on easement of access.

2.7. lmpairment of non-financlal assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet in use are not srbject to
amortization and are tested for impairment annually. Land, construďion in progress and assets that
are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circurnstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be higher as a recoverable amount. An impairmert loss is
recognized for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amc,unt. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
individually identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-Íinancial assets other than goodwill
that were impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting dale.

2.8. Non-current assets held Íor saIe and discontinued operations

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale, when their carrying amount s to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of or is dassiÍied
as held for sale, and

a) represents either a separate major line of business or a geographical area oÍ operations;
b) is a part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of bus ness or

geographical area of operations; or
c) is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale and the disposal involves loss oÍ

control.

2.9. Financial assets

The Company classiÍies financial assets into three valuation categories: assets subs:quently
measured at amortized cost, assets subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) and assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).

A financial asset is valued at amortized cost when the following two conditions are met:
a) Íinancial asset is held in a business model where there is intention to hold the Íinancial asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and
b) Íinancial assets contractual terms and conditions result, on specified dates, in cash flows that
represent payments of principal and interest on the outstanding principal only

A financial asset is valued at fair value through other comprehensive income when the follorving two
conditions are met:
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a) financial asset is held in a business model, where there is intention both to colleď contracual cash
flows and to sell the financial asset; and
b) financial assets contractual terms and conditions result, on specified dates, in cash fbws that
represent payments of principal and interest on the outstanding principal only.
A financial asset is valued at faiľ value through profit or loss, unless it is valued at amortizec cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income. For certain investments in equity lnstrum:nts that
would otherwise be valued at fair value through profit or loss, an entity may, however, when initially
recognizing them, irrevocably decide to present any subsequent changes in fair value through other
comprehensive income.

lnitial valuation:
Apart from trade receivables that do not include a significant financing component, a Íinancial asset or
financial liability is initially recognized by a company at its fair value plus or minus (if the financial asset
or financial liability is not valued at fair value through profit or loss) transaction costs attrib:table to
acquisition of the financial asset or issuance of the financial liability.
lf' however, the Íair value of the financial asset or financial liability at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price, an accounting entity applies the fair-value method and recognizes the ďfference
between the fair value and the transaction price as a proÍit or loss.
lf an accounting entity uses trade date accounting in relation to the asset that is subsequently valued
at amortized cost, such an asset shall be initially recognized at its fair value at the dale of the
transaction.

Subsequent valuation:
After its initial recognition, an accounting entity recognizes a financial asset at (a) amortized cost; (b)

fair value through other comprehensive income; or (c) fair value through proÍit or loss.
An accounting entity applies impairment requirements to financial assets that are valued at amortized
cost and to financial assets that are valued at Íair value through other comprehensive income.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date - the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Company derecognizes financial assets when (a) the assets are redeemed or the rights to cash
flows from the assets otherwise expired or (b) the Company has transferred the rights to the cash flows
from the Íinancial assets or entered into a qualiýing pass-through arrangement while (i) also
transferring substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets or (ii) neither transferring
nor retaining substantially all risks and rewards of ownership but not retaining control. Control is
retained if the counterparý does not have the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an
unrelated third parý without needing to impose additional restrictions on the sale.

Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition.

Financial assets at Íair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through income statement. Financial assets are
classified as held fortrading if they are acquired forthe purpose of selling or repurchasing inthe near
term or to mitigate risks. This category includes derivative financial lnstruments entered inb by the
Company that are not designated as hedging lnstruments in hedge relationships. Fĺnancial assets in
this category are classified as current.

Realized and unrealized gains or losses arising írom changes in the fair value of the ,,Íinancial assets
at fair value through proÍit or loss" are recognized in income statement in which the fair value changed.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non_derivative financial assets with Íixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the reporting date. These are classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are disclosed as part of non-current and current financial assels, trade
receivables and cash and cash equivalents on the Statement of Financial Position.
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Loans and receivables represent trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents.

2.í0. Leases

a) Leases - IFRS 16

When concluding a contract, the Company assesses whether or not the contract includes a lease. A
contract is a lease contract or contains lease if it transfers the right to control the use oÍ an ilentiÍied
asset for a certain period for consideration. A contract is considered as a lease by the Company if it

meets all the Íollowing requirements:

- There is certain identified asset, either explicitly or implicitly; and

- The lessee basically gets all the economic benefits resulting from the use of the identified asset;
and

- The lessee is entitled to control the use of the identified asset.

When concluding a contract, the Company assesses whether or not the contraď includes a lease. A
contract is a lease contract or contains lease if it transfers the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a certain period for consideration. A contract is considered as a lease by the Company if it

meets all the following requirements:

The Company applied the new lFRs 'ĺ6 standard to all contraďs concluded before 1 January 2019.

For the initial reporting and subsequent revaluation of a leasing contract containing a leasing
component, the Company shall assign the agreed consideration to each leasing component
proportionally on the basis of its value, if agreed separately.

i. Leased asset (Company as a lessee)

The Company shall report the right to use the asset and the liability from the lease in the beg nning of
the lease. The initial value of the right oÍ use of the asset shall be set out as the sum of the initial value
of the liability from the lease, lease payments carried out before or on the day of commencement of
the lease, initial direct costs of the lessee minus any leasing incentives received.

When determining the period of lease, the duration of the agreed lease and the option of early
termination and/or prolongation is primarily evaluated. When assessing the probability of application
oÍ the option of prolongation and/or early termination of the lease period, the Company shall consider
all relevant facts and circumstances providing economic incentives for the applicaticn (non-
application) of these options. The period, for which the contract can be prolonged (or the period
following the option to early terminate the contract), shall be included in the lease period only if the
Company is sufficiently certain that the prolongation shall be applied.

The right of use of the asset shall be amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease period, from the
commencement of the lease until its termination. lf the lease includes a transfer of title or prrchase
option, the rlght of use of the asset shall be amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of use
of the asset amortization commences on the day of commencement of the lease. Assessment of any
potential impairment of the right of use of the asset shall be carried out in a manner similar to the
assessment of an impairment of a property, plant and equipment.

Liabilfty Írom the lease shall be first valued on the day when the leased asset is made accessible to
the lessee (day of commencement of the lease). Liabilities from the lease are initially valued in the
current value oÍ the lease payments over the lease period not paid as at the date of the initial valuation,
using the discount rate, which is the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee. The incremental
borrowing rate of the lessee has been determined on the basis of available Íinancial information related
to the Company. lf contract conditions change (e.9. the lease period is modified on the bas s of the
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prolongation or early termination of the contraď, lease payment amount changes due to a ďlange in
index or rate used to determine the payment amount, assessment of probability of appli:ation of
purchase option changes), a revaluation of the lease liability shall be subsequently carried out Any
subsequent revaluation of a liability from lease shall affect, among other things, the valuation of the
right of use of the asset. lf it results in a negative value of the right of use of the asset, the residual
impact shall be reported in relation to profiVloss (the value of the resulting right of use of tfie asset
shall be reported as zero).

The Company has applied an optional exemption and reports neither the right of use of asset nor the
liability from lease for all types of lease contracts wĺth the lease period up to 12 months. Costs related
to these leases are reported in financial accounts as operating costs evenly over lease periods.

The Company has also applied an optional exemption and reports neither the right of use of asset nor
the liability from lease in relation to lease contracts where the value of the leased asset is cleerly lower
than EUR 5,000. When determining the estimated value of an asset, the Company assumes that it is
a new asset. lf the asset value cannot be determined reliably, the optional exemption shall not be
applied.

ln its statement of financial position, the right of use of asset is reported by the Company in relation to
fixed assets and liabilities from lease are reported by the Company in relation to short-term and long-
term liabilities. Furthermore, the Company has reported transactions related to lease in its cash flow
statement as follows:

- Principal payments related to liability from lease are reported as part of the cash flow
related to financial activities;

- lnterest payments related to liability from lease are reported as part of the cash florv related
to operating activities;

- Payments of short-term lease, lease of minor assets and payments of variable parts of
lease not included in the valuation of liabilities Írom lease are reported as part of the cash
Ílow related to operating activities.

b) Leases - IAS 17 (comparable period)

i. Leased asset (Company as a lessee)

Any lease, where the Company assumes all significant risks and benefits characteristic for the
ownership of the asset in question, is classified as financial lease. For the initial recognitior, leased
assets are valued using the amount equal to their fair value or the current value of the minimum lease
payments, whichever is the lower. After the initial recognition, assets are accounted for in acordance
with accounting procedures applicable to the given asset type.

Other lease type is classified as operating lease and the leased assets are not reported by the
Company in the statement oÍ Íinancial position.

ii, Lease payments

Payment on the basis oÍ the operating lease are reported in the proÍit and loss statemenl on the
straightline basis over the agreed lease period. lncentives related to the lease are accounted for as
a non-separable part oÍ the total costs of the lease throughout the lease period.

For the financial lease, minimum lease payments are divided between financial costs and deoease in

the outstanding liability. Financial costs are allocated to each period over the duration of the lease, so
that a constant interest rate is ensured for the residual amount of the liability.

'ĺ5
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2.íí. lnventories

lnventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using ĺeighted
average cost method. The acquisition costs include all costs associated with the acquisiti,:n of the
inventories such as customs duties ortransportation costs. Net realizable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable selling costs.

2.12. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortzed cost
using the effeďive interest method, net of provision for impairment' Revenue recognition policy is
described in the Note 2.22.

The risk of customer insolvency is managed by financial guarantees received from customers which
can be used in case the customer debts are not settled when became due.

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that
the Company will not be able to colleď all the amounts due according to the original terns of the
receivables. Significant Íinancial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter into
bankruptcy or financial reorganization, default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators
that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the assets
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flow discounted by the original
effeďive interest rate.

IFRS I sets out a three-level model of impairment of financial assets, based on credit quality ;hanges
since their initial recognition. This model requires that a financial instrument that was nd initially
recognized with credit-based impairment is classified at level 1 and that its credit risk ĺs continually
monitored. lf any significant increase in credit risk is detected after the initial recognĺtion, the financial
instrument is moved to level 2 but no credit-based impairment is introduced yet. lf a Íinancial
instrument is affected by credit-based impairment, it is moved to level 3.

ln case oÍ level 1 receivables, an allowance is created in the amount equal to the portion of expected
credit losses over the lifetime of the receivable resulting from possible defaults in the following 12
months. ln case oÍ level 2 or 3 receivabĺes, an allowance is created on the basis of expecEd credit
losses over the lifetime of the receivable. According to IFRS 9, future-oriented lnformation have to be
taken into account when creating an allowance' Purchased or incurred financial assets affeďed by a
credit_based impairment are those Íinancial assets that are impaired already at their initial reognition.
ln those cases, allowance is always created based on their lifetime (level 3).

lmpairment of trade receivables is recognized through an allowance account. lmpairment losses and
their reversals, if any, are recognized in the lncome Statement within Other operating exp:nses or
income. Trade receivables that cannot be collected are written off. Trade receivables that were written
off and are subsequently repaid by the debtors are recognized in the lncome Statement within Other
operating income.

2.í3. Cash and cash equivaIents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents
are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

2.ĺ4. Share CapltaI

Registered shares are classified as Share Capital.

lncremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net oftax, from the proceeds.

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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2.í5. Curľent and defeľred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enaďed at the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and es:ablishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary diÍferences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Financial Stáements'
However, the defeľred income tax is not accounted for, if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transacticn affeďs
neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apcly when
the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable pro'it will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidĺaries, associates
and joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is conÍolled by
the Company and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeatse future.
Dividend income is not subject to income taxes in the Slovak Republic.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities where the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off tax assets against tax liabilities and these relate to income taxes fevied by
the same taxation authority.

According to act No. 23512012 Coll. the Company is payer the special levy from business aclivities in
regulated sectors that is calculated from the profit realized according to the Slovak Act on Accounting.
Total amount of this levy is included in the item ,,lncome tax expense".

2.16. Grants and contributions related to acquisition of propefi and equlpment

Grants and contributions are recognized at their nominal value where there is a reasonable certainty
that the grant or contribution would be received and the Company would comply with all attached
conditions. Grants and contributions relating to acquisition of property, plant and equipment were
accounted for by setting up the grant as deferred income, which was recognized as other income over
the life of related depreciable asset in connection with the grant approved by EBOR for the
Reconstruction - Structure 2,Paĺt2 an Structure 3 in KriŽovany, with the grant approved by EBoR for
Lemešany _ Košice - Moldava- Structure 4, with the grant for financing a reconstruction of switching
station 400/110 kV in Bystričany. The Company also has a grant approved by Danube lnGrid for
project, which is result of cooperation between the Company, Západoslovenská distribučná, a. s. and
the Hungarian distribution system operator E.oN Eszak-dunántÚliAramhálÓzati zrt. Pcl pro.ects are
key infrastructure projects aimed at interconnecting European energy systems and achieving the EU's
energy and climate goals.

2'ĺ7. Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. Borrovvings are
subsequently stated at amortized cost. The difference between the proceeds (net of transacton cost)
and the redemption value is recognized in the lncome Statement over the period of the bo'rowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional righl to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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2.18. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or construďive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligdion, and
a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are not recognĺzed for future operating
losses. Where the Company expects provisions to be reimbursed, for example under an lnsurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as an asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

lf there is an onerous contract presented at the Company, the present obligation accordirg to this
contract is recognized and valued as a provision.

Where there are number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized
even if the likelihood of an outflowwith respect to any one item included in the same class of ot.ligations
may be in a low value.

The amount recognized as a provision represents the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date, i.e. the amount that the Company would ľationally
pay to settle the obligation. The estimate is determined by the judgement oÍ the managemen: and the
Company's lawyers. The provision represents the individual most likely outcome as the best estimate
of the liability.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax-rate that reflects current market assessment oÍ the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase of the provision due to passage of time is recognized
as interest expense.

2.ĺ9. Contingent liabiIities

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the Financial Statements. They are disclosed in tle notes,
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying the economic benefits is remote.

2.20. Trade payables

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using effective interest method. Trade payables include the financial guarantees (Note 2.12).

2.21. Employee beneflts

The Company has both defined benefit and defined contribution plans.

Pension plans

A defined plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will
receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more Íactors such as age, years of Serĺice and
compensation. A deÍined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company peys fixed
contributions into a separate entity or to the Government and will have no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee Service in the current and prior periods.

Unfunded defined benefit penslon plan

The Company also has a long-term pension plan, which includes one-off payments at retirement in
accordance with legal requirements and its Collective Agreement.

According to the Collective Agreement the Company is obliged since 20'18, based on the number oÍ
years in Service Íor the employer SEPS (including the legal predecessors of the SEPS)' to pay its
employees on rďirement or disabĺlity the following multioles of their averaoe monthlv salarv

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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Number of years in Service

0 - 5 included
Over 5 to 10 included
Over 10 to 15 included
Over 15 to 20 included
Over 20

7
I
10
11
12

The minimum requirement of the Labour Code of one-moth average salary payment on retirement and
disability is included in the above multiples.

other beneÍits

The Company also pays the following life and work jubilee benefits:
. compensation of eleďriciý costs in amount of EUR 150 yearly to retired employees who have

worked continuously in the Company for at least three years, the Company paid the eligible
employees for the last time in 2021.wilh the amendment to the collective agreement, effeďive
January 1, 2022, this compensation contribution was cancelled.

r benefit in the amount of EUR 598 for an employee who reaches the age of 50 and 60 (D21: 577
EUR)

The employees of the Company expect that the Company will continue to provide such benefits and,
based on opinion of management, it is not probable that the Company would cease to provide such
benefĺts in the future.

The liability recognized in the Statement of Financial Position in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined obligation at the reporting date.

The deÍined obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. The present value of the deÍined benefit obligation is determined (a) by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government bonds which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related pension liability and (b) the attributing the calculated present
values to the periods of Service based on the plan's benefit formula.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in equity as incurred. Past-service costs are recognized
immediately as an expense, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the employees
remaining in the Service Íor a specified period of time (the vesting period). otherwise, the past_service
costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

ln calculating the provision for retirement benefits as at 31 December 2020, the allocation of benefit
costs to the period during which it provides the service was calculated from the date on which the
employee began working for the company (prorata temporis). According to a decision publshed by
the IFRS Committee during 2021 , service costs are allocated from the date on which the employee is
entitled to the benefit (criteria: length of service, condition of continuity, etc.). ln calculating the
provision as at 31 December 2021, this change was fully taken into account in the calculation of
provisions. The change compared lo 2020 also occurred in the compensation of costs for electricity
consumption. lt will not be paid from 1 January 2022 who have left the Company for an old age or
invalidity pension.

Defined contribution pension plans

The Company contributes to the government and private defined contribution pension plans.

The Company makes contributions to the government health, retirement benefit, accidental and
guarantee insurance and unemployment schemes at the statutory rates in force during the year, based
on gross salary wages paid.

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral parl on these Financial Statements.
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a

During the year, the Company made contributions amounting to 35.2% (2021:35.2%) of gross salaries
up to a monthly salary ceiling, which is defined by the relevant law for such schemes together with
contributions by employees of a further 13.4o/o (2021: 13.4o/o). The cost of these payments is charged
to the lncome Statement in the same period as the related salary cost.

ln addition, with respect to employees who have chosen to participate in a supplementary pension
scheme, the Company makes contributions to the supplementary scheme of 6% of the total oľ monthly
wages, excluding severance payment and payments at retirement.

Proflt sharing and bonus plans

Liabilities for any employees benefits in the form of profit sharing and bonus plans are recognized as
other payables when there is no realistic alternative but no settle the liability and at least ore of the
following conditions ĺs met:

there is a formal plan and the amounts to be paid are determinable beÍore the Financial Statements
are authorized for issue; or
the past practice created a valid expectation of employees that they will receive a profit sharing or
other bonus; and
bonuses or profit sharing may be determined before the financial statements are authorized for
ĺssue.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expeďed to be settled within 12 months and are
measured at the amounts expected to be pald when they are settled.

2.22. Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measu'ed, it is
probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria will b= met for
each of the Company's activities as described below.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of electricity
transmission and transit and other Services in the ordinary course of the Company's activities.
Revenues is shown, net of value-added tax, estimated returns, rebates and discounts.

Revenue are recognized at the transaction price at the time the goods or Services are transferred to
the customer. Any other different followed goods or Services are accounted for separately and the
discounts or refunds on the selling price are allocated to individual items. lf the price is variabl= for any
reason, the minimum value is accounted Íor if it is highly probable that it will not be deducted

The revenue is recognized when the respective Service is rendered.

Sales of Services are recognized in the accounting period in which the Services are ren&red, by
reference to completion of the speciÍic transaction assessed on the basis of the actual Service rrovided
as a proportion of the total Services to be provided.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established and nflow of
economic benefits is probable.

lnterest income is recognized in the period when it ĺs earned on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

2.23. Dividenddistribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Conpany's
Financial Statements in the period in which the divĺdends are approved by the Cĺnpany's
shareholders.

a
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2.24. Hedging Accountĺng

The Company holds derivative financial lnstruments in order to hedge commodity price risks. A hedged
item is other receivable or other liability reported by the Company exposing it to a risk oÍ charge of fair
value. lt is formally designated as a hedged item in the respective hedging relationship. lt must be
possible to reliably determine the value of a hedged item. A hedging instrument is a derivative
instrument, for which it can be expected that its fair value shall compensate changes in fair value of
the specĺfied hedged item' The Company has determined that the following derivative lnstruments are
used for hedging: short-term commodity futures. Hedging derivative instruments are initialĺy valued at
the acquisition costs and the respeďive transaction costs are reported in the profit and loss s{atement
upon their origination. Subsequently, after their first accounting, hedging derivatives are valrrd at fair
value and their changes are accounted in a manner described below.

Cash Flow Hedge

Changes in the fair value of a hedging instrument designated as a cash flow hedging instrurnent are
reported directly in equity to the extent the hedging is effective pursuant to the conditions specified in
IFRS I standard. The amount reported in equity represents a cumulative profit or loss from the hedging
instrument since the commencement of hedge or a cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged
item from the commencement of hedge, whichever is lower. Profits or loss from the hedging instrument
exceeding the amount reported in equity represent ineffectiveness and are reported in the proÍit and
loss statement. lf hedging of an expected transaďion subsequently results in reporting of a financial
asset or liability' the related proÍits or losses reported directly in equity are reclassified in the profit and
loss statement in the same period or in the periods during which the newly acquired asset cÍ liability
affeďs profit/loss. lf the hedged expected transaction subsequently results in reporting non_financial
asset or non-financial liability or if the hedged expected transaction with non-financial assel or non-
financialliability becomes a mandatory obligation, to which a fair value hedge accounting is aplicable,
the Company shall remove the respective amount from the provision for cash flow hedging and include
it directly in initial costs or other accounting value oÍ the respective asseíliability.

Fair Value Hedge

Fair value hedge is a hedging of the risk of a change in fair value of the reported asset, liability or non-
reported mandatory obligation, or an identiÍied part of such an asset, liability or mandatory obligation,
which can be allocated to the specific risk and can affect the Company's proÍit/loss. ProÍit or loss from
the hedging instrument is reported in profiVloss. lf the hedged item in fair value hedging does not
report a mandatory obligation (or its component), cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged
item, after being established, is reported as asset or liabĺlity, and the respective profit or loss is 'eported
in profit or loss. lf faĺr value hedging is connected with a mandatory obligation (or its compc,nent) to
acquire asset or liability' the initial accountĺng value of the asset/liability resulting from the conpliance
with the mandatory obligation shall be modified to include the cumulative change in the hedged item
fair value as reported in balance sheet previously. Profit or loss from the change in value of the hedging
instrument to fair value is reported in profiVloss. Profit or loss from a hedged item that can be allocated
to the risk being hedged shall be reported in the proÍ|t and loss statement and the accounting value of
the hedged item shall be modified by such value as well.

As at 3'1 December 2022, the Company classified all existing hedging relationships as cash flow
hedges.

Effectiveness of hedging is the extent, to which changes in fair value or in cash flows oÍ the hedged
item that can be allocated to the hedged risk are compensated by changes in fair value or cash flows
of the hedging instrument. lneffectiveness of hedging is evaluated through qualitative or quentitative
analysis, depending on the extent to which the main features of the hedged item are identical with the
main features of the hedging instrument. The main causes of ineffectiveness in hedging relat onships
include differences in the basis (i.e. A situation when the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item
depend on another variable than changes in fair value or cash flow from the hedging instrument), time
difference (i.e. the hedged item and hedging instrument are created and settled in differen: times),
difference in quantities or nominal values, credit or other risks that can affect the change in fair value
of the hedged item or the hedging instrument.

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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Hedge Teľmination

A company shall prospectively terminate accounting for hedge if the hedging instrument no more fulfils
criteria for hedging operations (taking into account any changes of hedging ratio, if applicab.le). This
include cases when the hedging instrument ceases to exist or is sold, cancelled or realized. Cu mulated
profit or loss reported previously in equity shall be reclassified and reported in the profit and loss
statement for the period in which the hedged item affects the profit and loss statement. Hedging
relationship, which keeps fulfilling the risk management objectives and other criteria for hedging
operations, taking into account any changes of hedging ratio, may not be terminated.

Glassification of Derivative lnstruments: Short-Term and Long-Term lnstruments

Derivative Íinancial instruments are classiÍled either as short-term or long-term lnstruments o'd|vided
in short-term and long-term part as follows:
o lf the Company holds the derivative instrument as economic hedging for more than 12 months

after the balance sheet date, the derivatives are classified as long-term ones (or divided ir a long-
term and short-term part) in compliance with the classification of the hedged item.

r Derivative financial lnstruments designated as effective hedging financial instruments are
classiÍied in accordance with the classification of the hedged item subject to it. A Érivative
instrument is divided into a shoŕ-term and long-term part only if it is reliably divisible.

o Derivative financial instruments held primarily for trading purposes are classified as sl'ort-term
instruments.

2.25. New standards and interpretations that have not yet been applied - standa'ds and
interpretations adopted by the European Union

The following issued new standards and interpretations were issued with the possibility of early
application and the Company did not apply them early.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements

The Amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with
early application permitted. The amendments to IAS 1 require for companies to disclose their material
accounting policies and not their significant accounting policies.

The Company plans to apply the amendments from January 1,2023. The Company does nct expeď
the amendments to have a significant impact on its financial statements upon their initial app ication.

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estlmates and Errors

The Amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2C,23, with
early application permitted.

The amendments introduce a definition of 'accounting estimates' and include further amendments to
lAS 8 that clariý how to distinguish changes in accounting policies Írom changes in estima:es. The
distinction is important because changes in accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively,
whereas changes in estimates are accounted for at the time when the change occurred.

The Company plans to apply the amendments from January 1,2023. The Company does nd expect
the amendments to have a material impact on its financial statements upon their initial application.

lAs í2 lncome taxes - Deferred Tax Related to Assets and LiabiIities Arising from a Slngle
Transaction

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. ll should be applĺed
prospectively. Earlier application is allowed.

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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The amendments narrow the scope of the original recognition exemption (lRE) so that it does not
apply to transactions that lead to identical and compensating temporary differences. As a result,
companies will be required to recognize a deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability due to teĺnporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of a lease and a reinstatement provision.

The Company plans to apply the amendments from January 1, 2023. The Company does not expeď
the amendments to have a material impact on its Íinancial statements upon their initial application.

2.26. New standards and interpretations that have not yet been applied - standards and
inteľpretations that have notyet been adopted by the European Union

Amendments to lFRs ĺ0 and IAS 28: SaIe or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

European Commission has decided to postpone their adoption for indefinite period

The amendments clariý that, in transactions with an affiliate or joint venture, any proÍit oĺ loss is
recognized to the extent and according to whether the sold or contributed asset represents an
enterprise, as follows:

. Profit or loss is recognized in full if the transaction between the investor and its affiliate or a joint
Venture involves the transfer of asset or assets that represent an enterprise (regardless of wňether it
is placed in a subsidiary or not),. ProÍit or loss is recognized in part if the transaction between the investor and its affiliate or a joint
Venture includes assets that do not form an enterprise, even if the asset is placed in a subsiďary.

The Company does not expect that these supplements, when they are flrst applied, will have a
signiÍicant impact on the presentation of its financial statements, because the Company does not have
any subsidiaries, affiliates or joint ventures that would represent net investments of the Company.
According to a preliminary conclusion, the Company will continue to be able to accourt for its
subsidiary as well as for its joint venture at cost.

Amendments to lAS í Presentation of Financia! Statements: CIasslfication of Liabilties as
Current or Non-current

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non_current is now effeďive for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The amendments clarify some IAS 1 requirements relating to materiality, order of the notes, srbtotals,
accounting policies and disaggregation.

Amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current should be based on
rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting period and align the wording in all affected
paragraphs to refer to the "right" to defer settlement by at least twelve months and make explicit that
only rights in place "at the end of the reporting period" should affect the classification of a liability;
clarify that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to
deÍer settlement oÍ a liability

The classificatĺon is not affected by management's intentions or expectations as to Whether ard when
the Company will apply its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also cla1fy what
is considered settlement of a liability.

Amendments to IFRS í6 Leases: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Effective Íor accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. Earlier application is a lowed.

Amendments affect the way a seller-lessee accounts for variable lease payments in a sale and
leaseback transaďion. The amendments introduce a new accounting model Íor variable payments

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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and will require se|ler-lessees to reassess and, where appropriate, reclassiÍy sale and leaseback
transactions entered into since 2019.

The amendments conÍirm the following:
. On initial recognition, the seller-lessee includes variable lease payments when it measures a lease

liability arising from a sale-and-leaseback transaction;
. After initial recognition, the seller-lessee applies the general requirements for subsequent

accounting of the lease liability such that it recognises no gain or loss relating to the right of use it

retains;
. Seller-lessee may adopt different approaches, which meet the new requirements for subsequent

valuation.

The amendment does not change the accounting for leases unrelated to sale and laseback
transactions.

The Company does not expect the amendments to have a material impact on its financial statements
upon their initial application.

3 Financial Risk Management

3.ĺ. Flnancial risk factors

The Company's activities are exposing it to a variety of Íinancial risks: market risk (includin3 foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and the risk of commodity price
change. The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of Íinancial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's peŕormance. The
Company uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate certain risk exposures, if necessary.

Risk management is carried out by the Company under policies approved by the Board of Directors.
The Company identiÍies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in cooperation with the Ccmpany's
operating units. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
speciÍic areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and non-derĺvative financial instruments.

(i) Market risk

(a) Foreign exchange rlsk

The Company provides electricity transit Services and auďions in which payments are dencminated
in EUR. Similarly, the Company recognizes part of purchases and credit financing with payments
denominated in EUR.

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and rnonetary
liabilitĺes at the reporting date are as follows:

Liabilities as at
31 December 3í December

Assets as at
3ĺ. December 3í. Deceĺnber

2022 20212022

czK 53 I 667 1 468

The impact of other currencies on the Company's operations is immaterial.

Based upon the sensitivity analysis of financial assets and liabilities recognized as at 31 December
2022, a 10 % strengthening/weakening, in the EUR against CZKwould result in an increase/decrease

0
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in the Company's profit by 147 EUR. Management considers the risk is not significant as at 'eporting
date.

(b) Price risk

The Company is not exposed to significant price risk, as it does not invest in equities.

(c) Operating risks - prices of Services

The Company is a natural monopoly and its activities are regulated by the Regulatory Office fa Network
lndustries (hereinafter referred to as the "Office"). Resolutions of the Office determine tariffs, prices and
allowed costs of the Company. To determine these values, the Office applies procedures and formulas
described in the Office decrees following the principles set out by the Regulation Board in its regulation
policy for the regulation period in question.

The year 2022 is part of regulatory period 2017 - 2022. During this regulatory period is used the
determination of prices for access to the transmission system and electricity transmission based on the
price cap and tariffs for losses and system Services are determined on the basis of maximum permĺtted
costs. The main part of cost for the providing system Services are costs for support Services, and at
the different types of the support Services sets maximum prices of purchased Services or the naximum
allowable cost. Part of the cost for the providing of system Services is assured by payment of fixed
prices for regulated electricity procured within the framework of the IGCC (lnternational Gnd Control
Cooperation), which is used to prevent the supply of regulation electricity in opposite direďions through
the cross-border conneďions.

The Company acts as shippĺng agent within Czech, Slovak, Hungarian and Romanian electric ty market
interconnection (hereinafter referred to as the "MC") in region 4MMC. ln June 2021,the 4MMC region
merged with the MRC region, where the Polish, German and Austrian electricity markets are
interconnected. Since June 2022, the Company has been part of the single daily market Flow-Based
Market Coupling pľoject, which optimizes the daily European electricity market for 13 countňes within
the Core Capacity Calculation Region. Relevant revenues and costs of the Company consists of
payments for electricity transmitted through the cross-border links within the interconnection of
eleďricity markets.

Revenues of the Company consist primariĺy of revenues from tariffs determined by the office in the
respective resolutions (revenues from energy transmission and capacity reserves, reverues from
losses in energy transmission, revenues from system Services and revenues from balancirr$ ener$ý
acquired within the IGCC system) as well as revenues related to cross-border energy transmission,
where the prices for the transmission are not determined by the Office (revenues from the settlement
of cross-border transmissions between the operators of transmission networks within the ITC
mechanism, revenues from transmission capacity auctions and revenues from MC).

The Company's costs mainly consist of costs for purchase of support Services needed to provide
system Services, purchase costs for the electricity to cover losses and own consumption, costs for
regulated electricity acquired under |GCC system, the costs associated with cross_border :lectriciý
transmission and other costs needed Íor transmission system operation and operation of the Company.

(d) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Company repaid the last loan with a variable rate on 3 December 2015. As at 3'1 December 2022
the Company did not have unpaid loan. For this reason the Company is not exposed to inte-est rate
risk in consequence of long- term loans.

The Company analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis' Financia| situatior oÍ the
Company is stable and is not expected to refinance existing debt or alternative financing. Operating
revenues and operating cash flows of the Company are largely independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Company has no significant interest - bearing assets other than cash and cash
equivalents.

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with
banks and financial institution, as well as credit exposures to customers, including ou:standing
receivables. lf Wholesale customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. lf there is no
independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its
financĺal position, past experience and other factors.

The Company has implemented individual credit risk assessment of major customers. The input
lnformation for the assessment is payment discipline oÍ customer, indicators from =inancial
Statements, available lnformation on customer's indebtedness. Major customers include tlose with
highest purchases of Services. Payment conditions are set-up according to the results of the
assessment. Average maturity of receivables upon sale of products and Services is based on dates
agreed in the contracts, i.e. 3 to 30 days.

The Company is managing risk of non-payment of customers through advance payment and
guarantees.

As for the trade receivables, the Company carries out its activities with a few significant counterparties.
Although the receivables of the Company are generated from a few customers only, the crelit risk is
limited due to character of the counterparties. All the customers are strategy Slovak ccmpanies
engaged in the electricity business, most of them with an influence by the state.

Maximum exposure related to trade and other receivables is the nominal value of trade receivables
adjusted by individual impairment of EUR 22591(Note 11). The Company created the imcairment
provision of EUR 105 000 for the expected loss on trade receivables that are not yet due after 3í
December 2022 (31 December 2021: EUR 105 000).

The table below shows the balances of receivables due from bank (short-term financial assets) and
other cash at the reporting date:

Balance as at 3ĺ Deceĺnber
Counterparty Rating2 2022 2021
Banksl
Všeobecná Úverová banka, a. s.
Tatra banka, a. s.
Československá obchodná banka, a. s.
Slovenská sporitel'ňa, a' s.
Štátna pokladnica
365 Banka, a. s. (Poštová banka, a. s.)
UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a. s.
pobočka zahraničnej banky
UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a. s.
HypoVereinsbank
Other

Total

PC
PC
M
M

BB-

A3
A3
M
nla

151 105 313
109 235 007
40 061 691
40 446 851
25 126 913

85 876

13 680 760
26 888 095

45775
4 968 089

111 008 305
985 870

17 182596
0

32 385 185
72025

2771 445
4182U4

0
108 224

415701 457 í64638 607

1 The amount of cash and short-term deposits at banks as at 31 December 2022 amounts to EUR
160701 457 (31December2021: EUR'ĺ64638607). Short-term financial assets in the amount of
EUR 255 000 000 as at 31 December 2022 represents deposits in banks with a commitment period of
more than three months (31 December 2021: EUR 0). The Company has bank borrowings as at 31
December 2022 oÍ EUR 5 341 (31 December 2021 : EUR 5 475 461 ).
2 The Company uses the independent rating of Moody's, Fitch Ratings and Standard & Poor's.

As a part of cash and cash equivalents, the Company reports bank accounts in the anĺount of
EUR 17 861 I 1 1, which secure trading on the spot market and the commodity futures market hr a form
of variable collateral.
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(iii) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable secu'ities, the
availability oÍ funding through and adequate amount of committed credĺt facĺlities and the ability to
close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business the Company aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The Company manages liquidity risk by having an option to utilize bank overdrafts which sho-rld cover
an immediate shortage of cash. The Gompany regularly monitors its liquidity position and uses
overdrafts only in exceptional cases. The Company also uses the advantages of commercial terms
between the Company and its suppliers to secure suffĺcient Íinancing funds to cover its needs. The
maturity of supplieťs invoices is between 3 to 60 days'

The Company monitors movements of financial resources on its bank accounts on a regular basis.

Expected cash Ílow is prepared as follows:
o expected future cash inÍlows from main operations of the Company,
o expected future cash outflows securing operations of the Company and leading to settbment oÍ

allliabilities of the Company, including tax payables.

A cash flow forecast is prepared monthly. lt identiÍies the immediate need for cash and, if f.lnds are
available, it enables the Company to make term deposits and other investments.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity reserve comprises un-drawn
borrowing facility and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expeďed cash flow'

The table below analyses the Company's Íinancial |iabilities by relevant remaining matľity. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances as the impact oÍ discounting is not significant

Less than í
Between í Between 2 'f,ver 5

and 2 years and 5 years years

At31 December2022
Bank loans
Finance lease
Trade and other payables
excluding liabilities not falling under
IFRS 7
Total 78 073 597 íí0 83í 213878 47704

5 341

176 414
77 891 842

0

110 831
0

0

213 878
0

0

47 704
0

At31 December2O2l
Bank loans
Finance lease
Trade and other payables
excluding liabilities not falling under
IFRS 7
Total

5 475 461

200 134
73 551 'ĺ66

0

197 449
0

0

333 815
0

0

93 578
0

79 226761 197 445 333 815 93 578
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Less than í
Between í Between 2 over 5

and 2 years and 5 years years

As at 3í December 2022

Short term financial liabilities -
hedging derivative lnstruments

Total

2 164 731 0

00

0 0

2164731 0

As at 3í December 202ĺ
Short term Íinancial liabilities -
hedging derivative lnstruments

Liabilities from financing
activities

As at 3í
December 202í

Cash-flow fľom
financing
activities

As at 31
December 2022

48 457 260 0 0

0

0

00Total 48 457 260

Fair value of a hedging derivative does not diÍfer from its accounting value as at 31 December 2022
and 31 December2021.

oveľview of movements in liabilities from financing activitles:

Other
changes

Bank loans
Liabilities from lease
Other finance liabilities
Dividends
lnterests

5 475 461
824 976

0
0

0

-5 470 120
-276 149

0
58 790 250

-338 465

0
0
0

-58 790 250
338 465

5 341
548 827

0
0

0

Tota!

(iv) Commodity risk

52 705 5ĺ6 -58 45í 785 554 í68

The Company's exposure to commodity price change risks arises in purchasing electricity as a result
of contraďs tied to eleďricity prices quoted on exchange and can be quantified through risk factors. To
mitigate the exposure to commodity price fluctuations, the Company uses commodity futures.

Managing processes related to commodity price change risk in the Company are designed so that the
status and development of risks in time is monitored on ongoing basis and it ĺs possible to determine
whether the risk ĺevel observed for various areas (e.g. from the point of view of geography, organization,
etc.) is within the limits set out for acceptance of risk defined by the Company's top management.
These operations are carried out in accordance with the concept of formal control rules, within which a
striď risk limits were set. Compliance with these limits is verified by the departments that are
independent on those Company sections that carry out the transactions, while trading poslions are
assessed through the Value-at-Risk indicator monitored on quarterly basis.
Electricity Commodity Derivative Sensitivity Analysis

Sensitivity to Changes in Fair Value of Electricity

Eleďricitv Commoditv Derivatives Net Fair Value Change

6 300 437

'ĺ0% decrease
Balance as at 31 December 2022
10% increase

26 373 649
25 169798
23 965947

1 203 851

-1 203 851
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Electricity Commodity Derivatives Net Fair Value Change

10% decrease
Balance as at 31 December 2021
'ĺ0% increase

Sensitĺvity to Changes in Market Prices of Electricity

Electricity Commodity Derivatives

52 380 760 3 923 500
48 457 260
44 533760 -3 923 500

Net Fair Value Chanqe

10% decrease
Balance as at 31 December 2022
10% increase

22652 818
25 169798
27 686777

Net Fair Value

-2 516 980

2 516 980

ChaoeElectricity Commodity Derivatives

10% decrease
Balance as at 31 December 2021
10% increase

35 679 128
48 457 260
45 370 580

December 31
2021

-12778132

-3 086 680

December

Effectivity of hedging is on the level of 100%

3.2. Capital risk management

The Company's objectives of managing Capital are to saÍeguard the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern in order to provide returns Íor shareholders and benefits for other stakeholJers and
to maintain an optimal capital struďure to reduce the cost of Capital. The Company's management
manages shareholders' capital reported under IFRS adopted by the European Union at 31 December
2022 in value EU R 97 4 513 965 (3'ĺ December 2021 EUR 870 682 994).

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as follows:

31
2022

Total equity and liabilities
Equity (Note 13)
The ratio of Equity to Total liabilities and equity

1 484 118 471 1 258 125 8"1
974 513 965 870 682 994

66% 69o/o

The Company's strategy did not changed compare to2021and during years2022 and T21, the
Company complied with the externally imposed capital requirements (Note 15).

3.3. Falr value estimation

Fair value of financial assets and Íinancial liabilities is the amount, for which the financial instrument
could be exchanged in an independent transaction involving informed and voluntarily consenting
parties, unless it is a forced liquidation or execution sale. To determine the respective fair vafues, the
following methods and assumptions were used:

Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trading receivables, trading payables and oth-.r short-
term liabilities are approximately equal to their accounting value, basically due to the sl'ort-term
maturiý oÍ these lnstruments.
Long-term receivab|es with Íixed or variable interest rate are assessed by the Compan/ on the
basis of parameters such as interest rates, risk factors specific for the given country, individual
customer creditworthiness and the risk connected with the Íinanced proieď. on the basis oÍ such

a

a
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assessment, adjustments are used in accounting to cover expected losses from such rec:ivables.
As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, accounting value of receivables, after the
adjustment is deducted, does not signiÍicantly differ from the fair value of such receivables.

o The fair value of quoted lnstruments is based on bid prices as at the balance sheet date. Fair
value of unquoted lnstruments, bank loans and other financial liabilities, financial leasing liabilities
and other non-financial liabilities is estimated by discounting any future cash flows using a rate
that is currently available for loans with similar conditions, credit risk and remaining maturity.

o Fair value of financial assets intended for a sale is determined on the basis of market price quoted
on active market, if any such price is available.

o Value of derivatives is determined using valuation techniques and inputs that can be obs:rved on
the market, primarily in the form of commodity futures. Valuation techniques that are used most
often include the so-called forward valuation model.

Hierarchy of Fair Values

To determine and report fair value of financial lnstruments and non-financial assets, the Company
uses the following hierarchy, based on valuation method:

Level 1: Quoted prices (non-adjusted) on active markets applicable to the same assets/liabillies.
Level 2: Other techniques, for which all the inputs that significantly affect the fair value can be observed
on the market, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Techniques, for which the inputs that significantly affect the fair value are not hased on
observable market data.

Fair value of financial lnstruments is based on inputs other than their quoted market price at the date
of preparation of the financial statements.
Accounting value of trading receivables and payables, after a deduďion by adjustrnents, is
approximately equal to their fair value.

Financial liabilities 31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level3
measured at fair value 2022
Hedging derivatives 25 169 798 0 25 169 798 0

Financial liabilities
measured at fair value

31 December Level '1 Level 2
2021

Level 3

Hedging derivatives 48 457 260 0 48 457 260 0

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future periods. The ac':ounting
estimates due to its nature, would diÍfer from actual results realized in future period. Critical estimates
and assumptions that bear a risk that their change will cause a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the future, are described below.

(i) Regulated revenues

The Company is a natural monopoly and its aďivities are regulated by the Regulatory C'ffice for
Network lndustries (hereinafter referred to as the "office''). Resolutions of the office determine tariÍfs,
prices and allowed costs of the Company. To determine these values, the Office applies prmedures
and Íormulas described in the oÍfice decrees following the principles set out by the Regulaticn Board
in its regulation policy for the regulation period in question.

The Company's revenues comprise primarily revenues from tariffs determined by the Office in the
respeďive resolutions (revenues from energy transmission and capacity reserves, revenues from
losses in energy transmission, revenues Írom system Services and revenues from balancing energy
acquired within the |GCC system) as well as revenues related to cross-border energy transĺission,
where the prices for the transmission are not determined by the office (revenues from the sďtlement
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oÍ cross-border transmissions between the operators of transmission networks within the lTu
mechanism, revenues from transmission capacity auďions and revenues from MC).

For more details on description related to revenues see Note 3.1 (i) (c).

(ii) Pension benefits

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are deternined on
an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
(income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the
carrying amount of pension obligations.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest
rate that should be used to determine the present value oÍ estimated future cash outflows exp.ected to
be required to settle the pension obligations. By determining the appropriate discount ĺate, the
Company considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related pension liability.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditiors (Note
1e).

(iii) Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

The main operating assets of the Company are assets used for eleďricity transmission. ln Íe past'
the Company valued assets at the historical acquisition costs. As at 31 December 2011, 2116 and
2021 the Company applied the revaluation model to fair value according to IAS 16 for property, plant
and equipment, except for the classes of property containing vehicles, inventory and artwork.
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment was made by an independent expert who usad a net
realizable value. ln case oÍ increase oÍ the assets book value during revaluation, the analysis of the
possible impairment was performed based on the determining value in use (present valre of the
current cash flows expeďing from the use of property). The revaluation resulted in an increase in the
value of the assets and a related increase in other comprehensive income accumulated in equity.
Assumptions used in the revaluation model are based on the independent expert. The final 'eported
book values of these assets and related revaluation diÍferences are not necessarily the values atwhich
these assets may have been or will be sold.

The Company also evaluated the expected remaining useful life of the property, plant and
equipment based on the expert opinion as stated above.

2022 2021
Buildings, halls, networks, constructions
Machinery, equipment and vehicles
Other non-current tangible assets

10 - 60 years 10 - 6O years
4-50years 4-Syears

4 years 4 years

There are uncertainties regarding future economic conditions, technology changes and business
environment in the sector or regulations by URSO, which may result to future possible adjustments to
the estimated revaluations and useful life of property, plant and equipment. This may significantly
change the reported amount of assets, equity and profit of the Company in the future.

(iv) lmpairment test

As at 31 December 2022, the Company peŕormed a revaluation of the impairment losses for property'
plant and equipment in accordance with IAS 36 on the basis of assessment of their future use, Jisposal
or sale. The Company concluded that all assets used in the regulated activities relating to the
transmission of electricity represent as a whole one cash generating unit. Due to the increase in the
value of assets on its revaluation, an estimate of discounted future cash flows was also carried out

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a. s.
Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 3í December 2022 prepared in accordance with
lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(All amounts are in Euros unless sŕaŕed otherwise)

32

based on currently valid regulation by URSO. Based on the analysis, the Company concluded that the
assets used for regulated activities related to electricity transmission are not impaired.

5 Property, plant and equipment

Land
(revaluated)

Bulldĺngs'
ha116 and

constructlon
(ľevaluated)

Capltal work ln
Machinery and vohiclos and pÍogrcss
squlpmsnt* othorassots Including(revaluated) ** (cost)) advances (co3t) Total

At 1 January 2021

Cost

Accumulated
deprecialion and
impairment charges

Net book valué

YgaÍ ondod
31 Decomboŕ 2021

Opening net book value

Revaluation

Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Dépreciation charge

lmpaĺrment charge

Net book value at the
end of psriod

15 989 235 665 404 758 251 070 120 144 062 998

0 -13'ĺ 358 023 _90 243 583 -36 606 89í

54413437 1 130 940 548

o -258208497

15 989 235 634 046 735 160 826 537 107 456',t07 54413437 87273205',1

1 5 989 235

0

151 140

534 046 735

-7 657 024

23 563 263

32 875 173

463',t17

-21 625 764

0

160 826 537

52 428 809

15 903 5ĺ5

7 498 291

-980 362

-38 97í 670

0

107 456 107

0

I 190 534

56 t 320

-73 223

-2 910 960

0

54 413 437

0

638 50í

-40 934 784

o

0

0

a72 732 051

44 731 785

41 446 953

0

-1 516 702

-63 508 394

0

0

0

16 140 375 560 699 266 ĺ96 705 120 106 223 778 14 117 154 E93 885 693

At 3í Décémbor 2021
aftéÍ revaluation

Cost

Accumuláted
depreciation and
impairment charges

'16 'l40 375 582 090 'ĺ 79 20't 187 673 145 58',t 922

0 -21 390 913 -4482553 -39358 144

14 1',t7 154 959 1 17 303

0 -65 231 610

't6 í40 375 560 699 266 196 705 ĺ20 106 223 788 14 117 ',t54 893 885 693Net book valué

At 3ĺ Decombor 2021

Cost

Accumulated
depÍeciation and
impairment charges

Nct book value

Yéar ondéd
31 Docomber 2022

Opening net book value

Additions

Tľansfers

Disposals

Deprecialion charge

lmpairment charge

Not book valus at tho
end of pgÍlod

I 856 230 767 880 480 567 025 31 1 26 297 939

0 -266 685 455 -329 447 457 -7 321 232

14 11o 149 í 384 170 109

0 603 454 144

8 856 230 50í ĺ95 025 237 577 854 18 976 707 14 110 149 780 7í5 965

'ĺ6 140 375

4 197 321

0

-9'12

0

0

560 699 266

20 7 16 726

3 384 373

-209 901

-22 557 600

0

I 96 705 120

4 260 026

6 879 269

-3 656

-34 624 211

0

'106 223 788

473 337

764 362

-406

-3 847 135

0

14'l'17 154

14 436 751

-ĺ 028 004

0

0

0

393 885 693

44 084 161

0

-214 875

_61 028 946

0

20 336 78/ĺ 562 032 86/ĺ 'l73 216 648 ío3 613 936 17 525 901 176 726 033
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At 3í Docomboľ 2022
aÍter r9valuation

Cost

Accumulaled
depreciation and
ĺmpaiÍment charges

Net book valu6

20 336 784 605 863 755 208897 427 146 438 562 17 525901 )99 062 429

0 43 830 89ĺ -35 680 879 42824 626 0 -122 336 396

20 336 784 562 032 864 'l73 2',l6 518 103 6í3 936 17 525 90ĺ 376 726 033

13 052 736 790 662 879 551 476 566 35 212 430 'l7 525901 1 407 930 3ĺ2

0 -283 539 45í

Al 31 DecembeŤ 2022
in hlstoÍlcal costs

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation and
impáiÍment charges -10 374 667 0 -629 361 697

Net book value í3 o52 736 507 123 428 24 837 763 17 525 90ĺ 176 568 815

** lncludes lT equipment belonging to switchyards that was revalued.
*** lncludes invenlory, other fixď tangible assets, works oí art and collections and lT not belonging to switchyards.

The first revaluation oÍ property, buildings, halls' lines and structures took place on 1 January 2011.
As at 1 January 2016 and as at I January 2021 an independent expert who is in no way relat:d to the
Company performed update of the revaluation of land, buildings, halls, lines and structures, machinery
and equipment and other revalued assets on the basis of observed state and determination of
replacement costs of assets, with reference to records of current market transactions fa similar
property items and methodology for estimating net realizable Value. Net realizable values aÍe based
on current purchase prices at which assets could be acquired as new and the estimated residual
Values, which are based on current acquisition costs of the assets, useful life and age oÍexistirg assets
(net realizable value less depreciation methodology).

As at January 1 , 2021, the Company updated the revaluation. The revaluation resuĺted in an ncrease
in the accounting value of property, plant and equipment by EUR 44 731 785 (of which an increase in
comprehensive income by EUR 49 799 593 and a decrease in operating profit by EUR 5 067 808), an
increase in deferred tax liability by EUR 9 393 675' a decrease in proÍit by EUR 3 411 420 and an
increase in revaluation gains in other comprehensive income arcumulated as a revaluatĺon s-lrplus in
equity by EUR 39 341 678 after taking into account the effect of deferred tax.

Revaluation of assets to fair value was performed by an independent expert using a net realizable
value and he also assessed the useful life of each item of propefi, plant and equipment. The
revaluation resulted in a reduction of annual depreciation by EUR 11 825 826 in 2021 compared to the
previous accounting period.

This valuation is in accordance with lnternational Valuation Standards. The Company recorded a
revaluation update on January 1,2021.

As at 3'ĺ December 2022, the Company reassessed the impairment of property, plant and ecuipment
in accordance with IAS 36 based on an assessment of their future use, disposal or sale. The Company
has determined that all assets used in the regulated electricity transmission activities as a wlple form
a single cash generating unit. Based on the performed analysis, the company came to the conclusion
that the assets used for regulated activities related to the transmission of electricity are not impaired.

As at 31 December 2022,ĺhe most significant items within property, plant and equipment represent:
switching stations and administrative buildings in revalued net book value of EUR 408 291 494, in
historical net book value of EUR 352 288 025 (31 December 2021: revalued net book value oÍ EUR
436 282 í80, historical net book value of EUR 369 343 616); transmission lines at revalued net book
value of EUR 395 303 559' in historical net book value oÍ EUR 362 986 674 (31 December 2021:
revalued net book value of EUR 389 554 057, in historical net book value of EUR 353 602 489).

As at 31 December 2022, the Company assessed all internal and external indicators. The Company
did not Íind any indicators that would require that the impairment test be carried out on a group of
assets as at 31 December 2022.

-335 447 579

216 o2E 9E7

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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Non-current assets under construction consists mainly of EUR 3 153 833 for a backup data centre in
Podunajské Biskupice (31 December 2021: EUR 3 048 701), EUR 2292852 for 2x4G0kV line
Bystričany - Horná Žoana 1sĺ December 2021: EUR 2 247 446), EUR 1 564 205 for the 4ffi/110 kV
substation in Senica (31 December 2021. EUR 1 320 389), EUR 1 035 352 for charging the
connection Fortischem, a. s. to ES Bystričany (31 December 2021: EUR 343 033)' EUR 1 4B 529 Íor
central hyper convergent infrastructure (31 December 2021: EUR 0), EUR 0 for upgrade of equipment
in RlS Horná Žaana pl December 2021: EUR 68 378), EUR 0 for optimizing and increasing security
(31 December 2021 EUR 1 733 946). These assets are not available for use at the reportinE date.

ln 2022, borrowing costs are capitalized in accordance with accounting policies of the Company,
borrowing costs EUR 0 (2021: EUR 0) as a part of the acquisition cost of non-current assets. The
effective interest rate related to capitalization as at 31 December 2022 amounted 0% p.a. (31

December 2021: 1,27o/o p.a.).

The following table includes property leased by the Company as lessor under operating lease
agreements:

Land, buildings Plant, machinery
and structuÍes and equipment Total

As at 31 December 2022

Cost

Accumulated depreciatĺon

Net book value as at 31 December 2022

As at 31 DecembeÍ 2022

Historical acquisition cost

Accumulated depreciation historical

Net book value as al31 December 2022

As at 31 December 202'l

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value as at 31 December 2021

As at 31 December2021

Historical acquisition cost

Accumulated deprecialion historical

Net book value as at 31 December 2021

17 781 261

-1 441 902

0

0

17 781 261

-1 441 902

16 339 359 0 í6 339 359

24 566 421

-8 581 398

0

0

24566 42'.1

-8 58't 398

1s 985 023 0 í5 985 023

17 738 127

-723 707

0

0

17 738 127

-723 707

17 014 42017 014 420 0

24 5',13 208

-7 911 423

0

0

24 513 208

-7 911 423

't6 60í 785 0 't6 601 785

The Company also leases optic fibres and circuits. The value of such fibres and circuits is cifficult to
determine, as they are part of other assets that are used by the Company.

There are no restriďions oÍ ownership relating to property' plant and equipment other than those
disclosed in these Notes to the Financial Statements. No properý, plant and equipment l'as been
pledged.

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financiaĺ Slatements.
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Type and amount of Insurance of non-current intangible and tangible assets

The Company has insured its assets against the following risks:

lnsured object Type of lnsurance

Amount
insured as at
3'l Dec 2022

and 2021

Name of the lnsurance company

Buildings, halls
and
constructions

Inventory and
other tangible
esseis

Scheduled Capital
expenditures,
automatic
coverage of new
assets

Damage or total loss
(natural disaster)

Damage or total loss
(natural disaster)

Damage or total loss
(natural disaster)

21 7 369 609

613 423 693

73't 367 633

I 774 773

1 331 080

93 745 591

'ĺ 500 000

Damage or total los s
(natural disaster)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská
poisťovňa, a.s.

(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa,
a. s. Vienna lnsurance Group,

Colonnade lnsurance S.A., Generali
Poisťovňa' a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz _ Slovenská
poisťovňa, a.s.

(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa,
a. s. Vienna lnsurance Group,

Colonnade lnsurance S.A, Generali
Poisťovňa' a. s.)

Lead insureľ: Allianz _ Slovenská
poisťovňa, a.s.

(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa,
a. s. Vienna lnsurance Group,

Colonnade lnsurance S.A, Generali
Poisťovňa, a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz _ Slovenská
poisťovňa, a.s.

(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa,
a. s. Vienna lnsurance Group,

Colonnade lnsurance S.A, Generali
Poisťovňa, a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz _ S|ovenská
poisťovňa, a.s.

(Co_insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa'
a. s. Vienna lnsurance Group,

Colonnade lnsurance S.A, Generali
Poisťovňa' a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská
poisťovňa, a.s.

(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa,
a. s. Vienna lnsurance Group,

Colonnade lnsurance S.A, Generali
Poisťovňa, a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz _ Slovenská
poisťovňa, a.s.

(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňe,
a. s. Vienna lnsurance Group,

Colonnade lnsurance S.A, Generali
Poisťovňa, a. s.)

Machines, lools
and equipment,
vehicles without
car licence Damage or total loss
plates, (natural disaster)
transformers
RRB - radio relay
point, cables

Elevated line
Damage or total loss
(natural disaster)

ofÍice equipment
Damage or total loss
(nalural disaster)

lnventories

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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lnsured object Type of lnsuľance

Amount
insured as at
31 Dec 2022

and 2021

Name of the lnsurance company

lnventory and
other TFA

lnventories,
construction
components

Measuring
devices, cables,
and laptops in
motor vehicles

lnsurance against thefi ,

burglary and robbery,
and robbery during
transport and vandalism

ĺnsurance against thefi ,

burglary and robbery,
and robbery during
transport and vandalism

lnsurance against theft ,

burglary and robbery,
and robbery during
transport and vandalism

Cash, valuables,
stamps and
vouchers, lnsurance against theft,
documentary burglary and robbery,
securities and robbery during
deposited in the trensport and vandalism
vaults and
mailboxes

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská
poisťovňa, a.s.

(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa,
a. s. Vienna lnsurance Group,

Colonnade lnsurance S.A, Generali
Poisťovňa' a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská
poisťovňa, a.s.

(Co-insuľance: Kooperativa poisťovňa,
a. s. Vienna lnsurance Group,

Colonnade lnsurance S.A, Generali
Poisťovňa, a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská
poisťovňa, a.s.

(Co_insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa,
a. s. Vienna lnsurance Group,

Colonnade lnsurance S.A, Generali
Poisťovňa' a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská
poisťovňa, a.s.

(Co_insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa'
a. s. Vienna lnsurance Group,

Colonnade Insurance S.A, Generali
Poisťovňa, a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - S|ovenská
poisťovňa, a.s.

(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa,
a. s. Vienna lnsurance Group,

Colonnade lnsurance S.A, Generali
Poisťovňa, a' s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz _ Slovenská
poisťovňa, a's'

(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa,
a. s. Vienna lnsurance Group,

Colonnade lnsurance S.A, Generali
Poisťovňa, a. s.)

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská
poisťovňa, a's'

(Co-insurance: Kooperativa poisťovňa,
a. s. Vienna lnsurance Group,

Colonnade lnsurance S.A, Generali
Poisťovňa, a. s.}

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská
poisťovňa, a.s' (Co-insurance:

Kooperativa poisťovňa, a. s. Vienna
lnsurance Group, Colonnade lnsurance

S.A, Generali Poisťovňa, a. s.)

Set oí movable
tangible fixed
assets, cables,
elevated power
line

lnsurance against thefi ,

burglary and robbery,
and robbery during
transport and vandalism

16 597

331 939

290 966

í65 970

66 388

591',t45794

65 000 000

500 000

Machinery,
equipment and
cables

lnsurance of machinery
and equipment (damage
or destruction of
machinery)

Scheduled
Capital
expenditures

lnsurance of
cybernetic risks

lnsurance of machinery
and equipment (damage
or destruction of
machinery)

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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lnsured object Type of lnsuľance

Amount
insured as at
31 Dec2022

and2O2'l

Name of the lnsurance company

Terrorism

5 lntangible assets

10 000 000

Software and
other intangible

assets

lntangible
assets not yet

in use

Lead insurer: Allianz - Slovenská
poisťovňa' a.s. (Co-insurance:

Kooperativa poisťovňa' a. s. Vienna
lnsurance Group, Colonnade lnsuranc:

S.A, Generali Poisťovňa' a. s.)

Total

At'l January 2021
Cost
Amortisation charge
Net book value

Year ended 31 December 202í
Opening net book amount
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Amortisation charges
Closing net book value

At 31 Decembeĺ 2021
Cost
Amortisation charges
Net book value
Year ended 31 December 202í

Year ended 31 Decembeľ 2022
Opening net book amount
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Amortisation charge
Closing net book value

At 31 Decembet 2022
Cost
Amortisation charges
Net book value

61 505743
-44 672 887

s47 529
0

62 153 272
-44 672 887

ĺ6 832 856 947 529 í7:80 385

16 832 856
748'.t44
250 516

0
-5 171 440

947 529
5145 44'l
-250 516

0
0

17 :80 385
5 E93 585

0
0

-5 171 440
ĺ2 660 076 584245/. í8 502 530

62 340 863
-49 680 787

5 842 454
0

68 '83 317
-49 680 787

í2 660 076 5 842 454 í8 502 530

12 660 076
8 328 806
5 491 825

0
-5 104 234

5 842 454
16 594

-5 491 825
0
0

18 502 530
8 345 400

0
0

-5 '04 234
2t 376 473

76 ',152 338
-54775 865

223367 21 t43 696

367 223
0

76 519 561
-54 775 865

21 376 473 367 223 2í 743 696

The Computer Software consists mainly of Software SAP, SoÍtware for registry and Damas Energy
andMONARCHRISSED. Netbookvalueof SAPisEUR253181(31 December2021: EUR388641),
remaining amortization period is 3 years. Net book value of Damas Energy is EUR 3982271
(31 December 2021: EUR 41 1 336), remaining amortization period is 4 years. Net book value of
MONARCH RIS SED is EUR 4 170 365 (31 December 2021: EUR 7 214 352), remaining amortization
period is 2years.

lntangible assets not yet in use include EUR 248 500 for improvement of RIS safety (31 December
2021: EUR 248 500)' EUR 79 511 Íor update and upgrade of MARl/PlcAsso (31 December 2021:
EUR 0), EUR 0 for legislative upgrade of trading system (31 December 2021'. EUR I 887 2C2), EUR
0 for encumbrances for land under transmission line 2x400 kVVel'ký Meder - state borderwith Hungary
(31 December 2021: EUR 2 349 332).

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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lnternally generated intangible assets are immaterial.

There are no restrictions of ownership relating to intangible assets and no intangible assets are
pledged.

7 Shares in subsidiaries and other investments

At the beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals
At the end of the year

u332',l17 í35 278 315
00
0 -90 946 í98

44332117 4L332117

ln 2008, eight providers of transmission systems: Verbund _ Austrian Power Grid AG, ČEPs, a.s.,
Electro- Slovenija d.o.o., E.oN Netz GmbH, MAV|R Hungarian TSo Company Ltd.' PSE€perator
S.A., SEPS and Vattenfall Europe Transmission GmbH established a joint auction office (CAO) based,
Gute Anger '15, Freising, Germany in order to implemented coordinated congestion manapment at
regional level. ln 2013 Company's share on the Capital was 12.5 %. On 23 May 2014 was entered in
the German Register a new partner - Croatian provider HOPS d. o. o. and Company's share on the
Capital was reduced to 11'11oÄ.

The General Assembly of the Central Allocation office GmbH (CAo) and the Capacity Állocation
Service Company.EU s.A. (cAsc.EU)' two regional offices for allocating cross-border capacity Íor
electricity transmission, on 24 June 2015 approved the merger agreement and the creation of a Joint
Allocation Office (JAO).

JAO is a Service company founded by twenty-five transmission system operators of the tvlenty-two
countries - SOHertz (Germany), lPTo (Greece), Amprion (Germany), APG (Austria), ČEPs (Czech
Republic), CREOS (Luxembourg), ELES (Slovenia), ELIA (Belgium), EnerginetDK (Denmarh), HOPS
(Croatia), MAV|R (Hungary), PSE (Poland), RTE (France), Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava,
a.s. / SEPS, Statnett (Norway), Swissgrid (Switzerland), TenneT (Germany), TenneT (Netlrrlands),
Terna (ltaly), TransnetBW (Germany), Moyle (Northern lreland) and EirGrid (lreland), EMS
Elektromreza Srbije AD (Serbia), ESO Elektroenergien Sistemen Operator EAD (Bulgaria), National
Poweľ Grid Company Transelectrica, S. A' (Romania). lts main task is to conduct an annual, monthly
and daily auctions of rights to transmit electricity across 29 borders in Europe and act as backup Íor
the European Market Coupling.

New allocation platform was established on 1 September 2015. Following the merger until the end of
2015, both agencies operated in parallel to ensure the uninterrupted implementation of monthly and
daily auctions on all relevant borders. All acts and activities are fully moved to Luxembourg in the first
quarter of 20'l6' For the year 2022 are not available data about equity and proÍiVloss yet. The Company
does not expect that the investment is impaired.

ln June 2018, Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a. s' became a shareholder of TSCNET
Services GmbH (TSCNET). TSCNET is one of the European Regional Security Coordinators (RSC)
based in Munich, Germany. TSCNET provides integrated Services for the operators of transmission
systems and their dispatching centres in order to maintain the operational safety oÍ the power grid.

TSCNET shareholders are also the organization's major customers. At present, the follcwing 15
transmission system operators from eleven European countries are the organization's shareholders:
S0Hertz (Germany), Amprion (Germany), APG (Austria), ČEPs (Czech Republic), ELES ($ovenia),
HOPS (Croatia), MAVIR (Hungary), PSE (Poland), SEPS (Slovakia), Swissgrid (Switzerland), TenneT
(Germany), TenneT (Netherlands), TransnetBW (Germany) and Transelectrica (Romania). For 2022,
data on equity and profit or loss is not yet available. The Company does not expect any impa rment of
the investment.

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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on 'ĺ1 August 20'l0 the Company OKTE, a.s. (with its registered office in Mlynské nivy 48, 824 84
Bratislava) was registered in the Commercial Register of the District Court Bratislava L The only
shareholder of the company is Slovenská elektrizačná prenosová sústava, a.s. The Share Capital
consists ol 4 644 registered shares at a nominal value of EUR í 000 and legal reserve fund in amount
EUR 3 315. The company as the only shareholder the Company OKTE, a.s. decided on 23 Dacember
2020 to create Capital fund from contributions of shareholders in the amount of EUR 130 00O 000 and
this contribution was paid up as at 31 December 2020. The company as the only shareholder of the
Company OKTE, a.s. decided to compensation the loss of the company OKTE, a,s from tl^e period
ending as at 31 December 2020 Írom the Capital fund from shareholder contributions on 21 December
2021.

ln the case of compensatĺon of loss from other capital funds, the Company waived the right to pay out
back Other capital funds from OKTE, a. s., as it is possible in the case of Other capital funds. For this
reason, the assets of the Company decreased and this was accounted as a write-off of the value of
the Íinancial investment in the amount of EUR 90 946 198.

The loss of OKTE, a's. of the year 2020 is possible to identiý as a deficit from the system of support
for electricity production Írom oZE (renewable energy sources) and VÚKVET (high-efficiency
cogeneration), of which the company OKTE, a. s. is the organizer and clearer in accordance with Act
no. 25012012 Coll. on regulation in network industries, Act no. 25112012 Coll. on Energy and on
Amendments to Certain Acts and Act No. 309/2009 Coll. on the promotion of renewable energy
sources and high-efficiency cogeneration and on the amendment of certain laws. Profit oĺ loss of
OKTE, a.s. in the regulatory period it is given by the decision of ÚRso, which sets the prices of
regulated activities oÍ oKTE, a.s. in accordance with Decree no' 1812017 Coll. 

' 
which establishes price

regulation in the electricity industry and certain conditions for the peŕormance of regulated activities
in the electricity industry.

8 Assets representing the right of use

Company as lessee

The Company leases buildings, land, machinery, etc. Lease contracts are concluded for lease periods
ranging from 3 years to indeÍinite period.

The following table shows the overview of rights of use of the leased assets according to l=RS 16,
reported as part of real property, machinery and equipment:

As at í January 2022
Additions
Adjustments due to contract
modifications

Depreciation
Disposals

As at 3í December 2022

Land, buildings
and structurés

't01732
0

425

-30 879
0

Machines and
equipment

678 783
0

-64 505

-162 833
-11 349

Total

780 515

0

-64 080

-193712
-11 349

7'.1 278 440 096 s11 374

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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As at't January 2021

Additions
Adjustments due to contract
modiÍications

Depreciation

Disposals

As at 3í December 2021

Land, buildings
and structures

't61410
0

-25 926

-33752
0

Machines and
equipment

487 120

385722
0

-'t94 059

0

Total

648 530

385 722

-25926

-227 811

0

101 732 678 783 780 51s

9 Financial lnstruments by category

The reconciliation of classes oÍ Íinancial lnstruments with measurement categories under lFFS 9 is as
follows:

Financial
assets at fair

value through Loans and
As at 3í Decembel 2022 profit or loss receivables Total

Assets as per Statement of Financial Position
Trade receivables (before impairment provision)
Other receivables
Variable collateral from commodity futures
Variable collateral from spot trades
Short-term Íinancial asset
Cash on bank accounts and cash in hand

Total

0
0

0
0

58 893 014
539 050

0
0

25s 000 000
160 701 457

58 893 014
539 050

0
0

000
457

As at 31 December 2022

Financaal
!iabilities at

fair value

Financial
liabilities at

fair value
through profit

and loss

255 000
16A70',1

0 475133521 475133521

Other financial
!iabilities -
carried at

amoľtized cost Total

Liabilities as per Statement of
Financial Position
Trade and other payables
Received guarantees
Payables due to employees
Social security
Liabilities from derivatives
Other payables
Bank loans

Total

As at 3'l December 2021

2

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

ď731
0
0

66 59'l 042
7 155 108
1 396 114

850 272
0

1 980 961
554 168

66 591 042
7 155 108
1 396 114

850 272
2 164 731
't 980 961

554 168

2164 73'.ĺ, 0 78 527 665 80 692 396

Financia!
assets at fair

value through
profit and loss

Loans and
receivables Total

Assets as per Statement of Financial Position
Trade receivables (before impairment provision)
Other receivables
Variable collateral from commodity futures
Variable collateral from spot trades
Cash on bank accounts and cash in hand

Total

0
0

52982825
892 1 05

23 392 031
4 275 000

164 638 607

52 982 825
892 '105

23 392 031
4 275 000

164 638 6070

0 246 't80 568 246 180 568

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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As at 3í December 202í

Financiat
liabilities at fair
value thľough
profit and loss

Other financial
liabilities -
carľied at

amortized cost Total

Liabilitles as per Statement of Financial Position
Trade and other payables
Received guarantees
Payables due to employees
Social security
Other payables
Bank loans
Total

í0 lnventories

0
0
0
0
0
0

63 152 303
7 786 624
1 447 256

947 440
2 612 239
6 300 437

63 í 52 303
7 786 624
1 447 256

947 440
2 612 239
6 300 437

82246 2990 82246 299

As at 31 Decembe'
2022 2021

Prepayments shipper

Materials and spare parts
Goods

0
1 139 584

329 587

0
1 634 693

0

1 4ô9 171 1 634 693

There are no restrictions of ownership relating to inventories. No inventories are pledge.

11 Trade and other recelvables

As at 3í December
2022 2021

current receĺvables and prepayments

Neither past due nor impaired trade receivables
Past due but not impaired trade receivables
lndividually impaired receivables
Trade receivables (before provision for impairment)

Less: Provision for impairment of receivables
Trade receivables - net

58 863 757
6 513

22744

5i 958 608
1 473

22744
52 982 825

-127 500

58 893 014

-127 591
58 765 423 52 855 325

VAT - receivable
Grant claims
Prepayments
Provided guarantee
Other receivables
Variable collateral from commodity futures
Variable collateral from spot trades
Prepaid expenses and accrued income

otheľ ľeceivables - net
9 850 94í 4C 552263

Total trade and other receivables
68 616 364 93 407 588

All fees related to EEX exchange trading are covered through the clearing account maintained by the
clearing bank, namely UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a. s.. This account is also used
for exercising Íinancial settlement of purchase financial products at the EEX exchange. ln relation to
the future contracts in question, the parties apply exclusively a financial settlement, no conmodity is
supplied. Financial settlement is carried out on ongoing basis (on a daily basis), i.e. using a variable
margin. Settlement is performed through ECC (European Commodity Clearing AG) clearirB centre.

't 028187
774720

5 307
5 500 000

539 050
0
0

2 003 677

0
816 828

1C 240 735
0

892 í05
2? 392 031

4 275 000
935 564
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Losses are covered from the initial deposit. ln case that the level of the deposit gets under a certain
amount, it must be supplemented. Variable collateral from commodity futures and spot trades is in the
total amount of EUR 0 as of December 31,2022 (as of December 31' 2021: EUR 27 667 031, see also
Note 17, 3.1 and 3.3). As at December 31, 2022, hedging of trading on the commodity futures market
and the spot market ĺs carrĺed out through bank accounts that fulfil the function of short-term hedging
(Note 3.1).

Long-term receivables include the amount of EUR 1 079 061 related to the refinancing ď costs of
Capital construction within the Podunajské Biskupice power station incurred by Západoslovenská
distribučná, a. s. (31 December 2021: EUR 1 079 061)' the amount of EUR 4 269 000 oÍwhich the
short-term part is EUR 0 related to the refinancing of costs of Capital construction within the Senica
power station incurred by Západoslovenská distribučná, a. s. (31 December 2021: EUR 4 337 000)'
the amount of EUR 1 309 037 of which the short-term part is EUR 0 related to the refinancin; oÍ costs
for the construction in the electrical station in Stupava (31 December 2021: EUR 1 369 495 ), the
amount of EUR 16229 937 related to the refinancing of costs for the construction in the electrical
station in Vajnory (3'ĺ December 2021: EUR 16 229 937), the short-term part of this grant amounts to
EUR 774 720 (31 December 2021: EUR 774720), the amount of EUR 2124875 related to the
reÍinancing of costs of Capital construction within the Est Bystričany power station incurred by
Fortischem, a. s. (3í December 2021: EUR 3 074 123\ the amount of EUR 1 788 229, of which the
short-term part is EUR 0, related to the refinancing of the costs of Západoslovenská distribtŕná, a. s.
for investment construction in the power station in KriŽovany (31 December 2021: EUR 0)' tlrc amount
of EUR 2 988 753, of which the short-term part is EUR 0, related to the refinancing of the costs of Duslo
Šaľa, a. s. for investment construction in the power station in KriŽovany (31 December 2021: EUR 0),
and the amount of EUR 15788 726 related to the Danube lnGrid grant (31 December 2021: EUR
15669 3í2)' the short-term part of this grant is EUR 0. The Danube lnGrid project is the result of
cooperation between the Company, Západoslovenská distribučná a.s., and the Hungarian distribution
system operator E'oN Észak-dunántúli Áramhálózati zrt.Pcl projects are key infrastructure projects
aimed at interconnecting European energy systems and achieving the EU's energy and climate goals.

The analysis of trade receivables by the remaining period to maturity is shown in the followirp table:

As at 3í December
2022 202'.1

Receivables within due date

Overdue receivables

Total

58 863 757
29 257

52 958 608
24 217

58 893 0't4 s2 982 825

The analysis of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaĺred by their credit quality is as
follows:

As at 3í December

2022 2021

OKTE, a. s.

Slovenské elektrárne, a. s.

Západoslovenská distribučná, a .s'
Stredoslovenská distribučná, a' s.
Východoslovenská distribučná' a' s.
ČEPs, a. s.

MAVIR
Joint Allocation Office, SA
Other
Neither past due nor impaired trade receivables

16 039 't98

299 556

2 819 750
1 83'ĺ 582

1 3051',14

69762
5 111 599

18 764 768
12 622 428

14 455 733
480 072

2 886 208

2 048 274

1 175902
2 696

21 693 934

2 175 113
3 040 676

58 863 757 52 958 608

All receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are classified as trade receivables. The credit
quality of receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is monitored regularly by the management
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of the Company. Although the receivables of the Company are generated from a few customers only,
the credit risk is limited due to character of the counterparties. All the customers are strategic Slovak
companies, most of them engaged in electricity business, with an influence by the state.

As at 31 December 2022trade receivables of EUR 6 513 (31 December 2021: EUR 1 473) were past
due but not impaired. Their ageing analysis is as follows:

As at 3í December
2022 2021

1 to 90 days
9'l to '180 days
TotaI past due but not impaiľed trade receivables

5 078
1 435
6 5í€

1 473
0

MN

The balance of trading receivables as at the end of period includes overdue receivables of the carrying
value of EUR 6 513 (2021: EUR 1 473) for which the Company has not created adjustmen:s, as no
signiÍicant changes in the credibility of debtors have occurred and therefore the receivables are still
deemed recoverable. The company has created an adjustment of EUR 105 000 to cover overdue
receivables (2021: EUR 105 000).

The Company recorded no collateralized receivables.

As at 31 December 2022, trade receivables of EUR 22 744 (2021: EUR 22744) were individually
impaired. As at 31 December 2022, the Company recorded an impairment provision of EUR 22 591
(2021:EUR 22500).

The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

As at 3í Decemb:r
2022 2021

Od 18'l to 360 days
Over 36'l days

Total individually impaired receivables

0
22744

0
7M22

2274 22744

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are recognized in the lncome
Statement. Movements are presented below:

2022 2021

At the beginning oÍ the year
Additional provision íor receivables impairment
Release of unused provision
Receivables written -off during the year as uncollectible

Attheend oftheyeaľ

127 500
9'ĺ
0
0

1?'7 591

577 220
280

-450 000
0

127 5oO

No receivables have been pledged as collateral. The Company does not have any restrictions to deal
with receivables.

í2 Cash and cash equivalents

As at 3í December
2022 2021

Cash at bank and in hand
Short-term bank deposits

50 367 957
'ĺ 10 333 500
160701 457

7E 638 607
85 000 000

't64 638 607

At 3'ĺ December 2022 cash and cash equivalents were fully available for the Company's use
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For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flow, the cash and cash equivalents comprise the ĺcllowing:

As at 3í Decemb.er
2022 2021

Cash and bank balances and deposits with original maturities of less than
three months: 160701 457 164 638 607

160701 457 't64 638 607

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2022 are not substantially
different from their fair value. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited by the carrying value of
cash and cash equivalents.

The analysis by credit quality is reported in Note 3.1 (ii)

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had deposits in banks with a commitment period lorger than
three months in the amount of EUR 255 000 000 (31 December 2021: EUR 0).

í3 Shareholder's Equiý

As at 31 December 2022, the registered capital consisted of 235 bearer shares at a nominal value of
EUR 1 000 000 (31 December 2021:235 bearer shares at a nominal value of EUR 1 000 0C0). The
Company has no subscribed capĺtal that has not been entered in the Commercial Register Shares
are associated with equal rights. Legal reserve fund has not attained the minimum anount of
mandatory contribution under Commercial Code as at 31 December 2022, due to the faď that the
registered capital was increased during the year 2021.

As a sole shareholder of the Company, the Ministry of Finance of SR decided on 17 December 2020
that a capital fund would be created from the shareholder's contribution in the amount of
EUR 130 000 000 and this contribution was paid up as at 31 December 2020 in full. on 2'ĺ September
2021, capital fund from shareholder contribution in amount of EUR 130 000 000 was used to ncrease
the Company's share capital.

Legal reserve fund is obligatorily created from profit of the Company in accordance with the Slovak.
According to the Commercial Code, the Company is obliged to create a legal reserve furd in the
amount of 1oo/o of the share capitaĺ at the time of the incorporation of the Company. This amount must
be increased annually by at least 10 %'Írom net profit, until the legal reserve Íund achieves 20% oÍ
the share capital. Use of this fund is restricted under the Commercial Code only to cover losses of the
Company and it is not a distributable reserve. Legal reserve fund amounted to EUR 28764 514 as at
31 December 2022 (as at 31 December 2021: EUR 26 930 570).

The company created a congestion income fund of EUR 79 O33797 transferred from the retained
earnings of the previous years. Subsequently, the Company transferred EUR 20 779 073 Ťom the
congestion income fund to the statutory fund in order to secure investment activities.

Other capital reserves comprise statutory fund of EUR 196 184498 to finance capital expenditure
activities (2021: EUR 175 405 425) and differences from revaluatĺon of assets in amount of
EUR 83 845 735 (2021: EUR 96 382 309).

The statutory fund to finance future Capital expenditures is used to accumulate internal funds of the
Company allocated from profit dedicated to cover future Capital expenditures. ln2022, the Company
contributed to this fund the amount of EUR 20779073 from the congestion income fund
(31 December 2021'. EUR 0). The rules for the use of funds allocated to the statutory fund for Capital
expenditures are governed by the general Íinancing principles of the Company in relation tc Capital
expenditures, and by the acquisition guidelines. Funds in the statutory fund for financing Capital
expenditures are accumulated from the amounts allocated to the statutory Íund based on the lecision
of General Meeting.
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The movements in revaluation surplus are presented in the table below:

Opening amount
Revaluation surplus reclassified to retained earnings as at 3'ĺ Decembel 2022
Defened tax on revaluation surpĺus as at 31 December 2022
Deferred tax related to special levy Írom business activities in regulated sectors
At the end of the period

95 382 309
-15 999 811

3 359 960
103 277

83 845 735

2021

Opening amount
Revaluation as at I January 2021
Deferred tax to revaluation as at 1 January 2021
Revaluation surplus reclassiÍied to retained earnings as at 31 December 2021
Deferred tax on revaluation surplus as at 31 December 2021
Deferred tax related to special levy from business activities in regulated sectors
At the end of the period

72',135 907
4) 799 593
-1) 457 915
-1) 020 170

:l 994 236
-69 342

9ô 382 309

The Company believes that the property revaluation surplus is not immediately avaibble for
distribution to the shareholders. Parts of the revaluation surplus are reclassified to retained :arnings
by the difference between depreciation of the revaluated values and original acquisition costs of the
property. The rest of the revaluation is reclassified into retained earnings at the sale and disposal of
the assets.

The conversion on IFRS 16 had an impact on the opening balance of retained earnings as of 1. January
2019 in amount of EUR 69 163.

The General Meeting held on 22 June 2022 approved the Financial Statements Íor 2021. ln D22were
approved dividend Íor 2021 in the amount of EUR 0 (rounded) per share at the nominal valrc of EUR
1 000 000 (in 2021: EUR 279 381,60 rounded).

The profit Íor the year 2021 in amount of EUR 18 339 443 was distributed as follows:

2021 pĺoÍit
distribution

20ä profit
distribution

Dividends
Appropriation to the Legal Fund
Appľopriation to the Statutory Fund
Transfer to retained earnings
Total

0
1 833 944

0
16 505 499

29 335 068
5 930 570

0
24 040 064

18 339 443 59 305 702

The Company's retained earnings (including profit for the current accounting period and revaluation
surpluses reclassified to retained earnings) as at 31 December 2022 amounted to EUR 371 242 530
(31 December 2021: EUR 334 328 205).

As at the date of authorization of these Financial Statements for issue, the statutory body has not yet
proposed the distribution of proÍit Íor 2022.
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í4 Trade and other payables
As at 3í December

2022 2021

Trade payables
Received guarantees

Payables due to employees
Social security
Accrued personnel expenses
Liabilities from derĺvatives
Social fund

Other payables
Total

66 591 042
7 155',108
1 396 114

850 272
3 44',t 967
2 164731

467 435
I 980 961

63 1 52 303
7 786 624
1 447 256

947 440
4 112 679

0

3'ĺ9 898
2 612239

84 047 630 E0 378 439

The fair value of trade and other payables is not significantly different from their carrying amount.

Trade liabilities include the amount of EUR 1 085 874 relating to deliveries for investment artions not
invoiced as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: EUR 1 015 471). The long{erm part related to
deliveries for investment actions that were not invoiced as at 31 December 2022 amounts to EUR 0
(31 December 2021: EUR 6 000).

No payables are secured by a lien or other collateral.

The analysis of payables by the remaining maturity period is as follows:

As at 31 Decembeľ
2022 202'.1

Payables not yet due
Overdue payables

Total

83 581 213
466 417

ffi 273 705
't04 734

84 047 630 80 378 439

Social fund

Appropriations to and withdrawals from the social fund during the accounting period are shown in the
following table:

2022 2021

Opening balance at I January
Appropriations expensed
Usage

Closing balance at 31 December

3í9 898
't 083 462
-935 925

308 456
1 020 475

-ĺ 009 033
3't9 898467 435

15 Bank loans

As at 31 December
2022 2021

Non-current

Long term portion of bank loans 0 0

00
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Cuľrent

Short term portion of bank loans

The maturity of bank loans is as follows:

Maturity

5341 5 475 461

5 34í 5 47s 461

As at 31 December

2022 2021

Short term portion of bank loans

Long term portion of bank loans
'l - 5 years
Over 5 years
Total

5 341

0

5 475 461

0 0
0

5 341 5 475 461

The fair value of current borrowing approximates their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting
is not sĺgnificant.

Loan from Slovenská sporitel'ňa, a' s. Was repaid early in 2021. Loan from Všeobecná Úverová banka,
a.s. was repaidin2022.

Loans from VUB, a. s. and from Slovenská sporitel'ňa, a' s. include certain financial covenanb related
to limits on debt ratios, interest coverage and debt to operating profit ration calculated on th€ basis of
the Financial Statements of the Company. The Company complied with these covenan:s at the
reporting date of these Financial Statements.

The effective interest rates at the reporting date were as follows:

2022 2021

Bank loans 0,00% 1,27%
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Structure of bank loans as at 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Amount in EUR
31 31

December December lnterest rate Part due in next Part due after í2
Ban 2022 Maturity Collateral 12 months

48

Credit cards Tatra
Banka, a. s,

Všeobecná verová
banka, a. s.

Total

operating EUR 5 34í

investment EUR

x

461 January 2023

0 5 475 000

1,20o/o and
130%

based on
tranche 18.9.2022

5 34í 5475461

00 53/.1

5 341

0

0

00

xxxx

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Stovenská etektrizačná prenosová sústava, a. s.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 prepared in accordance with
lnternational Financial Reportĺng Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(All amounts are in Euros unless sŕaŕed otherwise)

í6 Lease payables

As at 31.
December

2022

49

As at 31.
December

2021

Long term
Long term portion of lease

Short-term
Short term portion of lease

Overview of movements of leasing liabilities during the period

372 413 624 842
324842372 413

176 414 100 í34
loo í34176 414

As at 3í December 2020 ô95 390
cost ĺnterests

lncreases (+)/ Decreases (-)

Payments for rents

11 360

359 798

-2!.1576

As at 3í December 202't 8^4 976

Cost interests

lncreases (+)/ Decreases (-)

Paymenls íor rents

10 597
-75 430

-211676

As at 3í Decembeľ 2022 5t,8827

The maturity of lease payables is as follows:

31 December
2022 202',1

Less than one year
1 - 5years
More than 5 years

Total

ĺ7 Grants and deferred revenues

Deferred revenues include the following items:

176 414
324 709
47 704

548827

2p0134
531264
93 578

824 976

As at k 31 December
2022 2021

Defeľred revenues
EBOR grant KriŽovany - long-term portion (a)

- current portion (a)

EBOR grant Lemešany - long{erm portion (b)

- current portion (b)

EBOR grant Bystričany - long-term portion (c)

- current portion (c)
US Steel - long{erm portion (d)

- current portion (d)

EU TEN-E - long-term portion (e)

7 418 841
489 733

27 370 080
1 301 376

49 603 01 9
1 891 968
2649 456

202 309
602 294

7 n8 574
e0 495

28 69 995
1 š'l4 044

'',t 
416 877

I 802 893
2861785

zJ.2290
630 984
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28 690
1 941 974

100 797
2 2't6 044

í49 500
653 509
28 399

I 633 450
65 314

1 869 442
67 074

3 650 235
120 183

3 294 311
171 260
333 602

11 637
591 333

18 104
2 863 994

71 537
4 269 000

0
3 160 227

0
0

'15 820 436
17 150

16 229 937
0

1 788 229
0

2 988 753
0

24 807 568
172 406 U2

50

28 690
2944 046

'00 957
2365 544

'49 500
68'1 909
28 397

1 €.98 765
6s 3't4

't E36 516
67 074

3 €30 876
120 183

3 264 388
182 153
?45239

1',t 637
e09 437

18 104
2535 423

71 645
4 337 000

0

3 C74 123
0

27 &757
15 574 401

88 096
16 29 937

0
0
0
0

0
21 83223

5 S86 391

- current portion (e)

E.On - long-term portion (f)

- current portion (f)

Slovenské elektráľne, a. s. - long-term portion (9)

- current portion (g)

EU TEN-E - long-term portion (h)

- current portion (h)

EU TEN-E - long-term portion (i)

- current portion (i)

EU TEN-E - long-term portion o
- current portion (j)

Západoslovenská distribučná - Stupava- long_term portion (k)

- current portion (k)

Východoslovenská distribučná - long{erm portion (l)

- current portion (l)

|NEA Veľký Meder - long-term portion (m)

- current portion (m)

INEA Rimavská Sobota - long{erm portion (n)

- current portion (n)

Západoslovenská distribučná - Podunajské Biskupice- long-term portion (o)

- current portion (o)

Západoslovenská distribučná _ Senica- long{erm portion (p)

- current portion (p)

Fortischem - long-term portion (q)

- current portion (q)

Commodity futures - current portion (r)

lNEA Danube lnGrid - long-term poňion (s)

- current portion (s)
Západoslovenská distribučná - Vajnory- long-term poŕion (t)

- current portion (t)

Západoslovenská distribučná - KriŽovany - long-term portion (u)

- current portion (u)

Duslo, a. s' _ KriŽovany- long_term portion (v)

- current portion (v)

Others - long-term portion (x)

- current portion (x)

Total 352 897 607 210 n1 662

As a result of the revaluation of property, plant and equipment in accordance with IAS 16 6 at 1

January 2021, deÍerred income decreased by EUR 592 148.

a)
On 10 December 2003, the Company concluded a grant contract with the European Bark for
Reconstruction and Development (EBRD), under which the EBRD undertook to provide a gnant of
EUR 24 million for lPR "KriŽovany 400 kV' Reconstruction- Structure 2, Paĺt2 and Struďure 3'. The
contract became effective on 4 August 2004. The subsidy proceeds were drawn over the peliod of
2004 - 2010.

The amount of EUR 7 908 574 (3'1 December 2021: EUR I 529 069) was recognized in deferred
revenue related to the grant.

At the reporting date, the Company has no executor warranties or other contingent liabilities related
to grant other than expenses connected to the project in accordance with an approved budget and
its structure.

b)
On 18 December 2007 the Company concluded a grant contract with the European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (EBRD), under which the EBRD undertook to provide a grant of
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EUR 43.9 million for extension lPR Bošáca 400 kV' transformer station 400/11OkV Medzibnd - 2.
construďion, transformer station 400/1 1OkV Medzibrod - 3. construction, power lines 2 x 400kV
Lemešany - Košice - Moldava - 4. construďion. The contract became effective on 4 Ju|y 20C8.

The amount of EUR 28 671 456 (31 December 2021: EUR 29 984 039) was recognized in deferred
revenue related to the subsidy.

At the reporting date, the Company has no executor warranties or other contingent liabilities ĺ'elated
to grant other than expenses connected to the project in accordance with an approved budpt and
its structure.

c)
on 14 December 2010 was concluded a grant agreement between Slovenská elektrzačná
a prenosová sÚstava, a. s. and the European Bank for Reconstruďion and Development (EBRD)'
in which the EBRD agreed to provide a grant of EUR 76 000 thousand. This agreement eÍected
on 17 December 2014' The grant funds will be used to set of buildings Bystričany - transformation
4oot110 kV, Íor expansion substation in Horná Ždaňa and KriŽovany Crossing the 400 kV KriŽovany
- Bystričany and 400 kV oslany _ Horná Žaana.

The amount of EUR 51 494 987 (31 December 2021: EUR 53 309 770) was recognized in deferred
revenue related to the subsidy.

At the reporting date, the Company has no executor warranties or other contingent liabilities related
to grant other than expenses connected to the project in accordance with an approved budg=t and
its structure.

d)
Defeľed revenues include an amount EUR 2 851 765 (31 December 2021: EUR 3 054 075)' related
to investment in the substation in KoŠice, which remaĺns in property oÍ the Company, however, the
company US Steel however, the company US Steel paid the half of the substation's acquisition
costs.

e)
Amount of EUR 630 984 represents a co-finance provided to the Company from an European
Commission's program EU TEN-E (Trans - European NetWork ) in the amount oÍ 10% of the value
of transmission lines EK-Moldava _ SS Košice (31 December 2021: EUR 659 674).

0
Deferred revenue of EU R 2 042 771 included in deferred revenues is related to construction field 1 3
in ES KriŽovaný that was 100 % Íinanced by company E.on Elektrárne s.r.o., Trakovi:e (31

December 2021: EUR 2 145 003).

s)
Amount of EUR 2 365 544 relates to refinancing of cost of Slovenské elektrárne, a.s. for connecting
to transmission systems EMo 3 and 4 in Vel'ký Ďur (31 December 2021'' EUR 2 515 044).

h)
Amount of EUR 681 908 represents co-finance provided to Company from European Commission
for the transmission line SS Košice - Lemešany (31 December 2021: EUR 710 306).

i)

Amount of EUR 1 698 764 represents co-finance provided from European Commission 'or the
meshing V 409 line to the new transformer station 400 /1'ĺOkV in electric station Vôl'a (31 December
2021: EUR 1 764079).

i)
Amount of EUR 1 936 516 represents co-finance provided to Company from European Commission
for the transmission line 4oo kV Gabčĺkovo - Veľký Ďur (31 December 2021'' EUR 2 003 590t.
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k)
Amount EUR 3 770 418 is related to the refinancing of Západoslovenská distribučná a.s. costs for
enlargement the electric station in Stupava by second transformer (31 December 2021: EUR
3 951 059).

r)

Amount EUR 3 465 571 is related to the refinancing of Východoslovenská distribučná a.s. costs for
the construction of devices necessary to connect R 400/1 10 kV Vôl'a into electric transnission
system (31 December 2021: EUR 3 646 541).

m)
Amount of EUR 345 239 represents the financial contribution from INEA agency intended fordesign
and engineering work for the project oÍ 2x4o0 kV line Vel'ký Meder - State Border of the Slovak
Republic - Hungary (31 December 2021'. EUR 356 876).

n)
Amount of EUR 609 437 represents the Íinancial contribution from |NEA
and engineering work for the project oÍ 2x4oo kV line Rimavská Sobota
Republic - Hungary (31 December 2021: EUR 627 541).

agency intended for design
- State Border of the Slovak

o)
The amount oÍ EUR 2 935 531 relates to the refinancing of costs of Capital construction witrin the
Podunajské Biskupice power station incurred by Západoslovenská distribučná, a. s. (31 Dec.ember
2021: EUR 3 007 068).

p)
The amount of EUR 4 269 000 relates to the refinancing of costs of Capital construction witrin the
Senica power station incurred by Západoslovenská distribučná, a. s. (31 December 202'l: EUR
4 337 000).

q)
The amount of EUR 3 160 227 relates to the refinancing of costs of Capital construction witrin the
Est Bystričany power station incurred by Fortischem' a. s. (31 December 2021: EUR 3 074 123)'

r)
The Company decided to trade at eleďricity exchange, namely EEX (European Energy Exclnnge).
ln 2020, the Company concluded future contracts at the exchange with the underlying comĺodity
being electricity. Some of these contracts were settled during 2020, other will be settled in 2021. The
objeďive of these transactions is to minimize or eliminate risk, therefore they represent hedging
against a potential unfavourable change in the commodity price. Expected future electricity
purchases by the Company are hedged (see also Notes 1'ĺ, 3.1 and 3.3)'

The amount of 27 364 757 EUR at 31 December 2021 represents hedging risk revaluation \ralue in
relation to commodity futures. The Company hedges cash flows related to the future purcheses of
eleďricity andin2022 fair value of the hedge is recorded through equity.

s)
The amount of EUR 15 837 586 relates to the Danube lnGrid grant (as at 31 December 202.: EUR
15 662 497). The Danube lnGrid project is the result of cooperation between the Conpany,
Západoslovenská distribučná' a. s. and the Hungarian distribution system operator E.oN Eszak-
dunántúli Áramhálózati zlt. Pcl pro1ects are key infrastruďure projects aimed at interconrecting
European energy systems and achieving the EU's energy and climate goals.

0
The amount of EUR 16 229 937 relates to the refinancing of costs of Capital construction within the
Vajnory power station incurred by Západoslovenská distribučná, a' s. (31 December 2021: EUR
16 229 937).
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u)
The amount of EUR 1 788 229 relates to the refinancing of costs of Capital construction within the
Križovany power statĺon incurred by Západoslovenská distribučná, a' s. (31 December 202': EUR
0).

v)
The amount of EUR 2 988 753 relates to the refinancing oí costs of Capital construction witrin the
KriŽovany power station incurred by Duslo Šaľa, a. s. (31 December 2021'. EUR o)'

x)
ln other deferred income is recognized then amount of EUR 203960 (3'1 December 2021: EUR
214 529), which relates to the joint procedure agreement for conneďion of company's
En-lnvest, a. s. facilities to the transmission system SR at the Moldava power station.

As other long-term deferred income the Company is recorded an income in amq.lnt of
EUR 23 661722 representing the proceeds of regulated tariffs, which does not belong to the
Company in 2022 according to regulatory accounting rules and procedures, but in 2024, when they
willbe realised.

As other short-term deferred income the Company is recorded an income in amo,rnt of
EUR 19258255 representing the proceeds of regulated tariffs, which does not belong to the
Company in 2021 according to regulatory accounting rules and procedures, but in 2023, when they
will be realised.

As other short-term deferred income the Company is recorded an income in amcunt of
EUR 153000000 representing the proceeds of regulated tariffs, which does not belong to the
Company in2022 according to regulatory accounting rules and procedures, but in 2023, when they
will be realised.

18 Deferred tax

Deferred taxes are calculated on temporary differences under the balance sheet liability rethod
using a principal tax rate ol21% (31 December 2021:21%). As at 31 December 2022 tax ráe will
increase by additional 4,4o/o Íor temporary differences in fixed assets due to charges for reg.llated
subjects based on act No. 23512012 Coll. (31 December 2021: 4,4%). This levy increased the tax
rate for temporary differences, which will offset by the end oÍ 2023 related to fixed assets, as the
value of the levy is calculated from profit before tax calculated accordĺng to the Slovak Act on
Accounting, no taking into consideration temporary differences.

DeÍerred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
asset against current liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority.

The movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

As at 3't
December

2021

Change
(-) costs/

Accounted to
other parts of

comprehensive
results

As at 31
benefits December 2022

Positive revaluation of fixed
assets
Negative revaluation of íixed
assets
Receivables
Tangible and intangible
assets
IFRS 16
Financial investment
Retirement benefit

-26 461 537 3 359 960

-54 '105 740
9 337

-28 980
950 008

-461 062
0

-151 192
0

-3184't62
-1 472

0
-95 642

103 277 -22 9S8 300

-612254
0

-57 2@902
7 865

-28 980
77578278

0
0

0
0
0

584
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3 3,t0 566
454 593

-235 888
82'5787

-68 3t0 731

As at 3í
December 2021

Provisions
Revaluation of derivatives
lnterests
Other
Total -70 959 358 2 109 341

1 464 523
0
0

7 674 093

1 876043
0

-235 888
541 694

0
593

0
0

454

As at 31
December

2020

Change
(-) costs/

(+) benefits

Accounted to
other paŕs of

comprehensive
results

Positive revaluation of fixed
assets
Negative revaluation of Íixed
assets
Receivables
Tangible and intangible
assets
IFRS 16
Financial investment
Retirement beneĺit
Provisions
Other
Total

_í9 928 516 3 994 236 -10 527 257
0

-895 981
0 0

-1 860 78í
-504

0
-158 247
719 532

1 746689
3 54/.94/. -íí 456 667

-26 431 537

-431 062
0

434 919
0

-522M959
I 841

-28 980
2 037 665

744 991
5927 404

ó3 o47 635

4-929

0
0
0

í0
0
0

-54 1)5 740
I 337

-28 980
9t0 008

1 4ô4 523
7 674 093

-70 959 358

í9 Provisions for Iiabilitles and charges

Pension benefits
and otheľ !ong-
term benefits (a)

Legal
claims (b)

Others
(c) Total

As at 1 January 2022
Additional provisions
Dissolution of provision in equity
Provisions used
Reveĺsals of unused provision

As at 31 December 2022

Analysis of total provisions

3 694 205 40 ĺ65

4 523 840
42',t 855
-374 199
-877 291

0

140 0
0
0
0
o

65
0
0
0
0

4 544 005
421 855

-374 199
-877 291

0
0 3 7)4 370

As at 3í December
2022 2021

Non - cuľent
Curľent
Total

3 694 205
40 165

3734 370

4 523 840
40 165

4 5ô4 oo5

The IFRS lnterpretation Committee published its decision in May 2021 regarding the allocaton of
benefits to periods of service. Until now, the beneÍit costs Were allocated to the period during which
it provides the service was calculated ftom the date on which the employee began working for the
company (prorata temporis).

According to a decision published by the IFRS Committee during 2021, service costs are allocated
from the date on which the employee is entitled to the benefit (criteria: length of service, cordition
of continuity, etc.).
ln valuation of employee benefits as at 31 December 2021 , this interpretation change related b IAS
19 was fully taken into account.

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.



Slovenská elektrizačná pľenosová sústava, a. s.
Notes to the Financial statements foľ the year ended 31 December 2022 prepaĺed in accordance with
lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union
(AlI amounts are in Euros unless sŕaŕed otherwise)

55

The change compared to 2020 also occurred in the compensation oÍ costs for ele'Íricity
consumption. lt will not be paid from 1 January 2022 who have left the Company for an old age or
invalidity pension.

(a) Pension benefits and other long-term benefits

The following amounts have been recognized with respect of the deflned benefit pension plen and
other long-term benefits:

(i) Post-employment benefits
As at 3í Decembeí

2022 2021

Present value of unfunded retirement obligations
Unrecognized actuarial gains/(losses) and portion of past Service costs
Obllgation in the Statement of Financial Position

The amounts recognized in the lncome Statement are as follows:

3 453 824
0

4 212 680
0

3 4s3824 4 212 680

2022 2021

Current Service cost
Past Service cost
lnterest cost
Pension (credit) / cost, included in personnel costs

Value recognized in Equity are as follows:

420 871
0

48 441
469 312

4E5 645
-956 653

E1 023
-3S9 985

2022 202'.1

Recognized actuarial gains from change in the method of calculating
pension liabilities
Total change recognized in equity

Movements in the present value of deÍined benefit obligation are:

-374 199
-374 199

-4 4?5 769
4 4r5 769

2022 2021

Present value of unfunded retirement obligations at beginning of the year
Current Service cost
lnterest cost
BeneÍits paid
Past Service cost
Cancelled
Actuarial gain on changes in IAS 19

Present value of unfunded retirement obligations at the end of the year

4 212 680
420 871
48 441

-853 969
0
0

-374 199
34538%

9 480 088
485 645
E1 023

-451 654
0

-9s6 6s3
-4 425 769
4 2;2680

(ii) Other Iong-term benefits (jubilees and Ioyalties)

As at 3í December
2022 2021

Present value of unfunded obligations
Obligation in the Statement of Financia! Position

240 381
240 3A

3í1 160
3íí í60
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2021

Current Service cost
Recognized actuarial gains/loss
Reported actuarial gains / losses
lnterest expense

Pension (cľedit)/cost' included in personnel costs

Value recognized in Equity are as follows:

30 2'13
26 094

-106 553
2789

32 417
19 317
53 309

1 760
47 457 1')6 803

2022 2021

Present value of unÍunded rétirement obligations at beginning of the year
Current Service cost
Past Service cost
lnterest cost
BeneÍits paid
Actuarial gains/losses
Présent value of unfunded ľetirement obligations at the end of the year

3't1 160
30 2'13
26 094
2789

-23322
-106 553
2{;o38ĺ

223 080
32 417
19 317

1 760
-18723
53 309

3ĺ1 í60

The principal actuarial assumption to determine the pension liabiliý Were as follows:

As at 31 December 2022

Percentage of employees, who will terminate their
employment with SEPS prior to retirement (fluctuation rate)
Expected salary increases
Discount rate

'1,7% -3,1 % p. a. based on age

4,30% p.a.
4,14% p.a.;4,24% p.a.

As at 3í Decembeľ 202í

Percentage of employees, who wilĺ terminate their
employment with SEPS prior to retirement (fluctuation rate)
Expected salary increases
Discount rate

1,0o/o -2,6 % p. a. based on age

2,75% p.a.
1,06% p.a.; 1,42% p.a.

The table below presents a sensitivity analysis related to significant assumptions as of 31 December
2022, calculated using a method that extrapolates the impact on employees' pension related
liabilities, a subject of reasonable change in key assumptions at the year end.

Sisnificant assumptions Chanoe Result Resrlt %

Discount rate

Discount rate

Fluctuation of employees, yearly

Fluctuation of employees, yearly

Change in Remuneration

Change in Remuneration

Change in probability of death

Change in probability of death

0,50%

-0,50%

-1,00%

'1,000/o

0,50%

-0,50%

-10,00%

10,00%

3 563 175

3 838 828

3 415 4s8
4 0't0 650

3 836 'ĺ41

3 564 502

3 661 985

3732 178

€'6%
3,8%

-7,6%

8,5Yo

3,8%

4,60/o

-o,9%

1,Oo/o

Expected payments or contributions to the defined benefit program in the future years in non inal
value:
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During the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)

Frcm 2lo 5 years

From 6 to 10 vears

205 479
2 ',t28 278
3 952 454

305 670
2 025 094

3210 404

Total expected payments 6 286 21'.1 5 5{1 168

The average duration of obligation for the deÍined benefit program at the end of the reporting period
is 10 years (in2021:10 years).

(b) Provision for lega! claims

A provision is created for those legal claims where it is probable, at the reporting date, that an
outflow of resources embodying economic beneÍits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The Company is involved in legal
cases regarding the cost reimbursement for bush cutting in the protection eleďricity lines zone and
compensation for easements. ln the opinion oÍ the Company's management, after taking
appropriate legal advice, the outcome of these legal claims will not give rise to any significant loss
beyond the amounts provided.

20 Revenues

Revenues include the following:

Revenues from electricity transmission and eleďricity transit:
2022 2021

Access to transmission grid

Fee for connection to the transmission system

Covering losing
System operation
System Services
Auctions
Deviations and regulation energy
CBT (lTC) mechanism
lmport & export
Cross-border emergency assistance
Unplanned electricity exchanges (FSkar)
Shipping
Other regulated revenues (mainly shipping and daily
market)
Total ľevenues from electricity transmission and
transit

Rental
Telecommunications Services
Other revenues

Tota! otheľ revenues

120 515 U8
837 299

31 478 503
850 'ĺ82

127 142695
30 595 404
60 642 505
I 119 152

559 396
I 411 092
7 233 039
7 779 291

1 189 013

131 920 537

1 118 541
1 7 5s9 668

134 281
130 662 080
36 5'8 439
29 468 963

9 215 949
368 153

I 351 682
2 882 548

78 5r'l 635

1 863 667

407 353 1í9 440 3t4 461

597 905
199 427
6s 862

7'6 064
t3 283
'4 608

863 194 8'3 955

Total revenues 408 2ĺ6 3í3 41 208 4',16

Revenues of the Company consist primarily of revenues from tariffs determined by the Office in the
respective resolutions (revenues from energy transmission and capacity reserves, revenues from
losses in energy transmission, revenues from system Services and revenues from balancing energy
acquired within the IGCC system) as well as revenues related to cross-border energy transnission,
where the prices for the transmission are not determined by the Office (revenues from the settiement
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of cross-border transmissions between the operators of transmission networks within the ITC
mechanism, revenues from transmission capacity auďions and revenues from MC).

Revenues Írom rental comprise income Írom the rental of non_residential premises, rental of dectric
masts for various types of transmitters and antennas and rental of power lines. Revenu:s for
telecommunications Services include the rental of fibre optic and Services of the management
lnformation system.

The Company aďs as shipping agent within Czech, Slovak, Hungarian and Romanian electricity
market interconnection (hereinafter referred to as the "MC") in region 4MMC. ln June 2021,ĺhe
4MMC region merged with the MRC region, where the Polish' German and Austrian eleďricity
markets are interconnected. Relevant revenues and costs oÍ Company are reported as sale of
goods, resp. costs as costs ofgoods sold.

ln2022 the Company realized transactions in total amount of EUR 3 353 834 556 and related costs
were EUR 2 740 096 623 (31 December 2021: transactions in total amount of EUR 1 424 717 787
and related costs were in the amount of EUR 1 302 493 324). According to IFRS 15, costs related
to implicit auctions in the amount of EUR 92 851 519 and also costs representing a colleďirn for
the beneÍit of a third parý amountĺng to EUR 582 363 152, were deducted from these items as at
31 December 2022, as such collection does not form a part of the transaction price accorďng to
IFRS 15. Revenues related to the use of the OT profile amounting to EUR 145825 779 are also
included in shipping (As at 3'l December 202'1, costs associated with the implicit auÍions
amounting to EUR 55817 647, costs representing collection for the benefit of a third party in the
amount of EUR 107 275 904; revenues related to the use of the OT profile in the amount ol EUR
135 135 149). Revenues from shipping with negative prices in the amount of EUR 61 002 and costs
oÍ shipping with negative prices in the amount of EUR 13311 are also included in the shipping.
Costs related to congestion income in the amount of EUR 84 390 532 and revenues relaled to
congestion income in the amount of EUR 7 773 091 are also included in shipping (as at 3'ĺ
December 2021: Revenues from shipping with negative prices in the amount of EUR 784 343 and
costs of shipping with negative prices in the amount oÍ EUR 552 494, costs related to congestion
income in the amount oÍ EUR 16771 629 and revenues related to congestion income in the arrount
of EUR 855 354).

2í Consumed materiaIs and Services

Consumed materials and Services included the following:

2022 2021

Material and energy consumption

System IGCC

Unplanned electricity exchanges (FSkar)
Repair and maintenance
Travel expenses
Representation expenses
Rental
Communication Services
Substations Service
Protection and maintenance of area
Revisions, Controls, security Services
Technical advisory, technical support
Cleaning
Biological reclamations
Geodetic Services

51 104268

17 257 527

25 7?5 521

I 5-l.6 632

14 515 086
5 435778

259 279
243',t35
225 961
234 469

1 469826
1 112433

605 096
111 700
235 986
't58 024
3'l 300

52e4273
6544402

1C3 280
45 169

355 371
2á827

19p.740
1872840
'ĺ 0c5 649

35 866
2e5 089
179 866

380
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Experts examinations, analysis, experts opinions,
certifications
I nformation technology Services, advertisement
Expenses Íor ancillary services
Expenses Íor system operation
Expenses for deviations
Expenses for auctions
Expenses for CBT/ITC
Audit of Financial Statements provided by auditor
Advisory Services
Tax advisory
Demolitions
Operating Services TSCNET Services GmbH
Recharges of shared costs
Other
Total

1 858 988
7 239 205

121 633 178
804 349

24 075 502
26s 316

'ĺ 898
36 000

409 835
't7 925

107 310
1 650 297
1 209221
1 258 839

1 379 191
6 977 965

124 9)6 285
0

I 7)8 568
315 365

I 054
16 000

4')2 317
l7 925
t1 4',t1

133'1740
276 804

1 3D2 680
253 567 731 199 0?7 210

The Company is a natural monopoly and the Regulatory Office regulates its activities for Nletwork
lndustries (hereinafter referred to as the "Office"). Resolutions of the Office determine tariffs, prices
and allowed costs of the Company. To determine these values, the Office applies procedures and
formulas described in the Office decrees following the principles set out by the Regulation Brard in
its regulation policy for the regulation period in question

The Company's costs are created mainly Írom regulated costs for purchase oÍ ancillary needed to
provide system servĺces, system operation costs, purchase of regulated electricity for loss co/erage
and own consumption within the system |GCC, costs for lnternational transmission and auďims and
other costs needed for transmission system operation and operation of the Company.

Together with the operator of the Czech transmission network, the Company has introduced a
system to avoid simultaneous supplies of balancing energy in opposite direďions using cross-border
conneďions (hereinafter the lGCC system). Since 2013, the operator of the Hungarian transmission
system has also participated in the system. The respective revenues and costs result from the
volume of the balancing energy acquired within the IGCC system and fixed prices for this bahncing
energy determined by a resolution adopted by the Office. The Company reports revenues frorn these
activities as part of the "sale of goods" and the "costs of goods sold". The net result is repcrted in
the line "System IGCC". During2022, transactions in total of EUR 15 222417 were carried cut and
related costs amounted to EUR 32155604 (31 December 2021: transactions totalled to EUR
6 253 727 and the costs amounted to EU R 15 641 312). Revenues from negative prices fror IGCC
totalled to EUR 2 4527O3 and costs of negative prices from IGCC totalled to EUR 2777 O43 (As at
31 December 2021 : Revenues from negative prices Írom |GCC totalled to EUR 1 646 875 and costs
of negative prices from IGCC totalled to EUR 1 835922).

22 Personnel costs
2022 2021

Wages and salaries
Other personnel costs
Pension costs - defined contribution plans
Current Service costs
Past Service cost
lnterest expense related to retirement and other employee benefits
lnterest costs on pension and similar employee's benefits
Total

20 394 456
2 256 693
I 532 960

451 084
26 094
51 230

-106 553

20726 850
2 410 204
8 ,ĺa8 648

s1 I 062
19 317
92783
53 309

31 605 964
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23 Other operating expenses
2022 2021

lnsurance costs
Losses from sale of fixed assets and materials
Provision for impairment
Taxes and other fees
Gifts
Non-production compensation
Other operating expense
Total

24 otheĺ operating income

2 118793
0

91

185 040
151 000
164 455
670 368

3289747 3 í88 369

2022 2021

2 190 687
:46 209
t49 720
199 854
92273

226 725
a82 34',1

Gain from sale of material
Profit from sold fixed assets
Release of deíerred revenues from a grant from EBOR
Contractual penalties
lnsurance
Excess material
Other operating income
Total

25 Finance expense, net

0
620 382

3 825 210
4 391 't09

147 209
249

606252

0

0
4 ilo 548
1 381 343
F8 572

353
@0 604

9 590 4íí 7 ú1 420

2022 2021

lnterest income
lnteresĺ expense Írom borrowings
lnterest expense related to IFRS 16
Foreign Exchange gains
Foreign Exchange losses
Write-off of financial investment
Dividends from OKTE, a. s.
other Íinancial revenues
Other financial expense
Net finance expensé

1 439 849
-318 295
-10 957

1

-2 965
0

58 790 250
0

-221 208
59 676 675 -91 238 005

32 542
-'3979
-11 360

65
-'t 123

-90 946 198
0

29 250
-137 202

ln 2021 other financial revenues represent revenues from liability provision from a short-term loan
provided to a subsidiary in the amount of EUR 50 000 000. For the financial investment writeoff in
2021. see note 7.

26 lncome tax expense

Reconciliation Írom the theoretical to the reported income tax charge is presented in the folbwing
table:

Year ended 31 Decembeľ

2022 202',1

Profit before tax 't23 697 230 49 416 515

Theoretical income tax related to current period at 2't%
(2021:21%)

- Other income not subject to tax (permanent)

- Non-deductible expenses (permanent)

25 976 418
-'ĺ3 8'l6 791

531 848

10 37" 468
-726229

18 't22 939
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- lncrease of tax due to charges for regulated subjects

- Defeľed tax from temporary differences to which no
deferred tax has been accounted historically
- Additional income tax
Changes in deferred taxes to 1 January due to change in
tax rate

lncome tax expense for the period

The tax charge for the period comprises:
- Deferred tax charge - expense/(income) (Note 18)

Deferred tax totaĺ

- Special levy for regulated subjects
- Additional income tax
- Current income tax expense

lncome tax total

5 820 997

0

42 543

0

3 274 917

0

n 977

0

í8 555 0í5 31 0Tr 072

-2 109 341 -35É4'944
-2 109 341 -35/4944

5 820 997

42 543
14 800 8'16

3 274 917

n 977

31 31) 122

20 664 356 u 622 016

Total income tax expense for the period í8 555 0í5 3'.l 0T7 072

15,00% 62,89%Effective tax rate

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences usĺng
the basic tax rate oÍ 21 % (31 December 2021: 21 %). This tax rate has been increased as at
31 December 2022Íor additional 4,4 o/o Íor temporary differences in fixed assets because of special
levy for regulated industry paid according to Act No. 23512012 Coll. (31 December 2021: 4.4 %).
This levy increased the tax rate for temporary differences, which Will offset by the end oÍ 2023 r--lated
to fixed assets only, as the value of the levy is calculated from profit before tax calculated according
to the Slovak Act on Accounting, not taking into consideration temporary differences.

27 Gontingencies

(a) Taxation

Many areas of Slovak tax law (such as transfer-pricing regulations) have not been sufficiently'ested
in praďice, so there is some uncertainty as how the tax authorities would apply them. The exĺent of
this uncertainty cannot be quantified. lt will be reduced only if legal precedents or official
interpretations are available. The Company's management is not aware of any circumstances that
may give rise to future material expense in this respect

(b) Regulation and Iiberalization in energy industry

Regulatory framework for the electricity market in the Slovak Republic.

Based on the current legislation, the electricity market in the Slovak Republic is liberalized and allows
free selection of electricity supplier for all customers.

Activities of the Company are subject to regulation by the Office (Regulatory Office for Natwork
lndustries - Únso).

(c) Litigation

The plaintiff Lumius Slovakia, s. r. o. 'ln liquidation' claims to reopen the court proceedings in which
the plaintiff claimed the payment in amount of EUR 3 792 188.01 with accessories because of the
unreasonable beneÍiciation and damages by the illegitimate charging of the system Services on the
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cross-border transmission. The plaintiff paid to the defendant following the Contract of transmission
of eleďricity through the interconneďor from 16 January 2008 in accordance the legislation at the
time. According to the opinion of the plaintiff, the illegitimate charging consists in the fact thá such
a fee is in the conflict with the European Union law. The Bratislava ll District Court dismiss=d the
claim, the plaintiff did not make an appeal against the judgment and the judgment became final.
Because of the Court of Justice of the European Union evaluated the charge as conflicted with the
European Union law in Case C-305117 , the plaintiff claims the reopening of the court proceedings
within the statutory period. At the hearing on 20 May 2021, the court rejected the motion to eopen
the proceedings, the plaintiff filed an appeal against the judgment, and the Company subm tted a
statement on the plaintiffs appeal. On November 14, 2022, the Regional Court in Bra:islava
annulled the first-instance judgment of the Bratislava ll Distriď Court and returned the matterto this
court for further proceedings as the justification of the first-instance judgment does not contain
reasons that would clearly and convincingly represent an explanation of the conclusion adopted by
the court that there is no personal or material connection between the proceedings for the
restoration of which the plaintiff is demanding and the decision of the Court of Justice of the
European Union in Case C-305/17, thus the decision of the Court of Justice of the EU is not binding
for the parties to this dispute. At the hearĺng on February 7 , 2023' the court did not make a decision
on the matter, adjourning the hearing to March 23,2023.

(d) Bank guarantees

As at 31 December 2022, the Company records issued bank guarantees in the amount ol EUR
38 000 000 to third parties.

28 Commitments

(a) Future investment commitments

The Company has contractual obligations under the contracts for the purchase of non-current assets
entered into before 31 December 2022, the performance of which is scheduled only after
31 December 2022. The total obligation under the contracts amount to EUR 38 047 682 (202' : EUR
21 093 684). The Capital expenditures are related primarily to the replacement oÍ conductcĺs, the
re-insulation of EBo V2 - Bošáca line, the re-insulation of line KriŽovany - EBo V2' the re-insJlation
of line KriŽovany - Bošáca, the update and upgrade of the core for the needs of system
transformation for 15 min intervals and the connection to MARI/PICASSO, with the change
connections Fortischem, a. s. to the transmission system in ES Bystričany, by renewing the
secondary technology of the 400 kV substation Bošáca- proteďion replacement and RlS innovation,
with the implementation of construction of electrical station Lemešany - RlS innovatior and
protection replacement, with the transition of Sučany eleďrical station to remote control.

The Company has approved a Capital expenditure budget Íor 2023 in the amount of EUR
73152907 (2022 capex budget: EUR 52 925 036). The Capitalexpenditures are related prirnarily
to the Renewal of secondary technology R 400 kV Bošáca - exchange of protections and RlS
innovation, with change of conductors and insulation oÍ lines, the looping of the 400 kY line V424
to ES Senica, with the innovation of RIS 220+400 kV (RlS central) and the replacement of
protections in ES Lemešany, with remote control in electrical stations and lCT systems, se:urity
ICT systems and business systems.

(b) Future operating Iease commitments - Company as lessee

Using the database of contracts, the Company selected contracts where it has the role of a lessee.
For these contracts, it assessed, whether they are compliant with the IFRS 16 conditions and
therefore whether are to be reported based on that standard. Reports, for which the Corpany
applied the optional derogation, are listed below. The Company reports neither the right of use of
asset nor the liability from lease for all types of lease contracts with the lease period up to 12
months. Costs related to these leases are reported in financial accounts as operating costs eĺenly
over lease periods.

The Company has also applied an optional exemption and reports neither the right of use of asset
northe liabiliý from lease in relation to lease contraďs where the value of the leased asset is cearly
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lower than EUR 5 000. When determining the estimated value of an asset, the Company assumes
that it is a new asset. lf the asset value cannot be determined reliably, the optional exemptior shall
not be applied.

The Company has the following future minimum lease instalments in relation to the above ope'ating
lease contracts:

3í December 31 December2022 2021

í83 187

The Company has also entered into an operating lease for an unlimited period oÍ time with a
possibility of termination with a 3-month termination period. The annual lease payments amount to
EUR 8785 (31 December 2021: EUR 8 726). The main items include the lease of
telecommunications routes.

c) Future operating lease commitments - Gompany as lessoľ

The Company leases out mainly transformation and optic fibre cables.

The following minimum lease instalments relate to the operating lease contracts

Due within I year
Due in 2 to 5 years
Due after 5 years

Total

Due within 1 year
Due in 2 to 5 years
Due after 5 years
Total

5
19

159

5
19

163

3't December
2022

3/.6225
1 260203
1 525 801

31 Deoember
2021

294 163
1 057 178
'l 534 265

3 132229 2 8t5 606

The Company has also entered into an operating lease for an unlimited period of time for which the
annual lease payments amount to EUR 430 574 (31 December 2021: EUR 385 144).

The Company leases 2x11OkV power lines ESt Lemešany - Es ss Košice from supporting point in
Bukovec to supporting point in Lemešany in length of 18'678 km. Lease expires in 50 years, rcnt is
calculated every year according to Capital, investment and operating costs. Annual rent for 2022 as
at31 December2022amountstoEUR328970 (31 December2021Íoryear2022: EUR275651).
The basic component of the rent will be paid to lessor for the time of 20 years and operating
component of the rent will be paid to lessor for the time of 50 years. The minimal lease instalnents
include the basic component of the rent ĺn amount of EUR 300 868 annually (31 December 2021:
EUR 250 672).

29 Cash generated from operations

Note 2022 2021

Profit before income tax

Adjustments Íor:
Depreciation
Amortization
Financial investments' write off
lmpairment charge for non-current assets
Changes in provisions for receivables
(Gain) / loss on disposal of assets
Dividend income
lncome from short - term Ílnancial assets

5
6
7
5
't1
24
25
25

123 697 230

61 222658
5 104 234

0
0

91
-620 382

-58 790 250
0

49 416 5't5

63 736 205
5',171 440

90 946 I 98
5 06" 808
-M9720
346 209

0
-29250

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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I nterest income/expense, net
Net movements in provisions

Changes in working Capital:
lnventories (gľoss)
Trade and other receivables
Short-term financial assets

Trade and other payables, deferred
revenues
Cash generated from opeľations

25
19

't2

-1 1'ĺ0 597
-829 635

165 522
22 172 479

-255 000 000

'ĺ35 320 639

1e2797
-5 179 328

-23a767
-87 5e.826

0

103791 708
3,t 33't 989 2252t8989

ln the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of non-current assets are as follows:

Yearended 31 December

Note 2022 2021

Net book value
Profit(loss) from sale of tangible fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of tangible fixed assets 626 132 489 748

Value adjustment
Other to trade or other Trade and

ľeceivables receivables other pavabtes

24
s 750

620382
8C5 957

-3.6 209

30 Related party transactions

Parties related to the Company include its sole shareholder, the subsidiary OKTE, a.s., the conpany
Joint Allocation Office, S. A. and TSCNET Services, GmbH and key management personnel of the
Company or the shareholder.

The National Property Fund (FNM), an entity fully owned by the Slovak Republic as the sole
shareholder of the Company till 1 October 2012. Since 2 October 2012, the sole shareholder is the
Ministry of Finance of Slovak Republic.

Transactions with entities that are owned or controlled direďly or indirectly by the State are realized
in accordance with the prevailing regulatory principles.

Ministry of Economy of Slovak Republic, is the 51 % shareholder of Západoslovenská energ=tika,
a. s., Východoslovenská energetika Holding, a. s. and Stredoslovenská energetika, a. e'The
companies Západoslovenská distribučná, a.s., Západoslovenská energetika - Energia, a. s.' ZSE
Elektrárne, s. r. o., Východoslovenská energetika, a. s., Východoslovenská distribučná, a. s. and
Stredoslovenská distribučná, a. s. are 100% subsidiaries of these companies'

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding balances with the subsidiary were as follows:

Gross amount of
trade receivable

OKTE, a. s 21 539 198

As at 31 December 2022,hhe outstanding balances with joint venture were as follows:

0 -2440199

Value adjustment
Other to trade or other Trade and

receivables receivables other payEbpq

0

Gross amount of
trade receivable

Joint Allocation Office, S. A.
Luxemburg
TSCNET Services, GmbH

1876ŕ768
0

0
0

0
0

-18 287 615
-89 265
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As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding balances with the state-controlled entities and
government bodies (other related parties) were as follows:

Gross amount Value adjustment
of trade Other to trade or other Trade and

receivable receivables receivables other payables
Slovenské elektrárne, a.s.
Slovenské elektľárne - Energetické
sluŽby' s. r. o.
ZSE Elektrárne, s.r'o.
Západoslovenská energetika, a.s.
Západoslovenská distribučná' a.s.
Západoslovenská energetika -
Energia, a.s.
Východoslovenská distribučná' a. s.
Východoslovenská energetika, a. s.
Stredoslovenská energetika, a.s.
Stredoslovenská distribučná, a.s.
Stredoslovenská energetika Project,
Development, spol. s r.o.
MH TH, a. s.
Žilinská teplárenská, a. s'
Martinská teplárenská, a. s.
Zvolenská teplárenská, a. s.
Vodohospodárska Wstavba, a. s.
Slovenský plynárenský priemysel, a. s.

299 556 17 499

0
0
0

2 819 750

0
1 305 114

0
0

1 835 951

0
0
0
o

0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0

0
o

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0 -6 475226

0
-2ď 410

-1 39
-45 281

-112711
-É'l42

-76
-60

-34 899

-525 600
-1 00á 176

0
0
0

-1 't05 001
0

7

32

0
630

0
0
0

926
90

As at 31 December 2021,ĺhe outstanding balances with the subsidiary were as follows:

Value adjustment
Gross amount of other to tľade or other Trade and
trade receivable receivables receivables other payabtes

OKTE, a. s. 19 955 733 0 -1 835750

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding balances with joint venture were as follows:

0

Gross amount of
trade receivable

Value adjustment
to trade or other Trade and

receivables otherpayables
Other

receivables
Joint Allocation Office, S. A.
Luxemburg 21751',13 0 0 -7 827244

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding balances with the state-controlled entĺties and
government bodies (other related parties) were as follows:

Gross amount Value adjustment
of trade Other to trade or other

receivable receivables ľeceivabtes

Trade and
other

paFbtes
Slovenské elektrárne, a.s.
Slovenské elektrárne - Energetické
sluŽby, s. r. o.
ZSE Elektrárne, s.r.o.
Západoslovenská distribučná' a .s.
Západoslovenská energetika -
Energia, a.s.
Východoslovenská distribučná' a. s.
Východoslovenská energetika, a. s.
Stredoslovenská energetika, a.s'
Stredoslovenská distribučná' a.s.
MH TH, a. s.
Žilinská teplárenská, a. s.
Martinská teplárenská, a. s.

480 072 21 618

0
63 330

2 886 208

0
1 175902

0
0

2 048 274
5 127

509
12 356

0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0 -1283'962

0
-7: 167
-'045

-2'224
-750
-324
-299

-45 330
-562 007
-169 367
-23,- 237
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Tra& and
other

a, s,
Vodohospodárska uj'stavba, a. s'
Slovenský plynárenský priemysel, a. s.

94 802
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

-572 919
-444

The income and expense items with the subsidiary, joint venture, state-controlled entities and
government bodies for the year ended 31 December 2022were as follows:

Sales of Purchase of
seľvices seľices

OKTE, a. s.
Joint Allocation Office, S. A.
TSCNET Services, GmbH
Slovenské elektrárne, a.s.
Slovenské elektrárne Energetické sluŽby, s. r. o.
Západoslovenská energetika, a. s.
Západoslovenská distribučná' a. s.
Západoslovenská energetika - Energia, a. s'
ZSE Elektrárne, s. r. o'
Východoslovenská distribučná' a. s.
Stredoslovenská energetika' a. s.
Stredoslovenská distribučná' a. s'
MH Teplárenský holding' a. s.
Žilinská teplárenská, a. s.
Martinská teplárenská, a. s.
Zvolenská teplárenská, a. s.
Východoslovenská energetika' a. s.
Vodohospodárska uj'stavba' a. s.
Slovenský plynárenský priemysel' a. s.

330 996 81 3
-333 799 435

0
7 002232

0
0

60 483 485
0

1 024 614
26 259 530

0
40 144 191

0
0
0
0
0

1 454 053
0

-114 994 193
-26 087 328
-1 673 557

-732*231
0

-15
-148 124
-7e5 401
-635 485
-e5 1 38
6 378

-3e5 288
-4529246

-26ts652
-2e1 762

0
-1 033

-5 46 095
-899

The income and expense items with the subsidiary, joint venture, state-controlled entities and
government bodies for the year ended 31 December 2021 were as follows:

Sales of Purchase of
services services

OKTE, a. s.
Joint Allocation Office, S. A.
TSCNET Services, GmbH
Slovenské elektrárne, a.s.
Slovenské elektrárne Energetické sluŽby, s. r. o.
Západoslovenská energetika, a. s.
Západoslovenská distribučná' a. s.
Západoslovenská energetika - Energia, a. s'
ZSE Elektrárne, s. r. o.
Východoslovenská distribučná' a. s'
Stredoslovenská energetika' a' s.
Stredoslovenská distribučná' a. s.
MH Teplárenshý holding' a. s.
Žilinská teplárenská, a. s.
Martinská teplárenská, a. s'
Zvolenská teplárenská, a. s.
Východoslovenská energetika' a. s.
Vodohospodárska výstavba, a. s.
Slovenský plynárenský priemysel, a. s.

176 263 970
-61 637 934

0
7 282 119

0
0

56 793 278
1 262

1 222370
23 968 131

0
37 319 562

0
0
0
0
0

1 527 927
0

-46 852787
-578t249
-'t 438163

-67 296 122
0

-393
-177 121
-33;156
-402 955

-2 450
-5 206

-438 859
-2762 316

-54'35'.1
-1 259 't03

0
-917

-4 829 257
-' 660

The negative values in the column Sales of services are due to the reporting of costs and revenues
on a net basis, as stated in notes 20 Sales and 21 Consumption of materials and services acccrding

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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to IFRS 15. ln this case, completed transactions for individual companies reported in sales were
lower than related costs.

Key management personnel compensation

Salaries and bonuses paid to the Company's management, direďors and other members of top
managementfortheyearended3l December2022and31 December202l,are asfollows:

Year ended
3í December

2022

Year ended
31 Decembeľ

2021

Salaries and short-term employee benefits
Total

1 302378 1 712 815
,l 302 378 17128',t5

The notes 5 to 68 form an integral part on these Financial Statements.
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3ĺ Events after the reporting period

After the date on which the Íinancial statements are prepared, no events have occurred that ĺyould
require adjustments or additional disclosures in the Íinancial statements and notes to the financial
statements.

Declaration of compllance

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 prepared in accordance
with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union were pre)ared
and authorized for issue on 7 March 2023.

lng. Peter
Chairman the Board of

lng. Jaroslav Vach, MBA
Member of the Board of Directors

lng. Ján oráč
Person responsible for preparation of the Financial
Statements

/

=*lng. Ružena Kollárová
Person responsi ble for bookkeepino
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